
i

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
PENNS PLACE
PETERSFIELD
HAMPSHIRE 
GU31 4EX

Telephone: 01730 266551
Website: www.easthants.gov.uk

LICENSING COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Friday 14 August 2015  

Time: 10.00 am

Venue: Council Chamber, Penns Place, Petersfield, GU31 4EX

Membership:   Councillor R Ayer (Chairman)

Councillors D Brooks Jackson, K Carter, L Evans, A Glass, G Hill, M Johnson, 
C Louisson, B Mouland, A Muldoon, J Onslow (Vice-Chairman), D Phillips, 
R Saunders, I Thomas and A Waterhouse

The business to be transacted is set out below: 

Jo Barden-Hernandez
Service Manager – Legal & Democratic Services

Date of Publication: 6 August 2015

Contact Officer: Lisa Papps 01730 234073
Email:  lisa.papps@easthants.gov.uk



ii

Page
1 Apologies for Absence  

To receive and record any apologies for absence.

2 Confirmation of Minutes  

To confirm the minutes of the Licensing Committee held on 29 May 
2015.

3 Chairman's Announcements  

4 Declarations of Interest  

To receive and record any declarations of interest from councillors 
present in respect of any of the various matters on the agenda for this 
meeting.

5 Taxi and Private Hire Licensing Policy  

Report of the Licensing Team Leader, enclosed.

FOR DECISION

1 - 122

6 Charges for Taxi and Private Hire Licensing for 2015/2016  

Report of the Licensing Team Leader, enclosed.

FOR DECISION

123 - 132



iii

GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR 
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, 
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 01730 234073.

Internet

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the East 
Hampshire District Council website: www.easthants.gov.uk

Public Attendance and Participation

Members of the public are welcome to attend and observe the meetings. 
Many of the Council’s meetings allow the public to make deputations on 
matters included in the agenda. Rules govern this procedure and for further 
information please get in touch with the contact officer for this agenda. 

Disabled Access

All meeting venues have full access and facilities for the disabled.

Emergency Procedure

Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits 
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will 
sound.

PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY.

DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO.

No Smoking Policy

All meeting venues operate a no smoking policy on all premises and ground

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


iv

.



NONEXEMPT

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

LICENSING COMMITTEE 14 August 2015

TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING POLICY

 Report of the Licensing Team Leader

FOR DECISION

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to set out the responses received to the public 
consultation and to recommend a revised Taxi and Private Hire Licensing Policy, 
Licensing Enforcement Policy, Penalty Points Scheme, and Licence Conditions 
attached to Combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver, Hackney Carriage 
Vehicle, Private Hire Vehicle and Private Hire Operator Licences.

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 That the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policies and Conditions enclosed in 
the Appendices to this Report are adopted.

2.2 Authorise the Service Manager (Environmental Health) in consultation with the 
Chairman of the Licensing Committee to make minor amendments to the Policy 
as may be required from time to time.

2.3 Fees

3.0 Summary 

3.1 The Licensing Committee of 29 May 2015 approved a draft Taxi and Private Hire 
Licensing Policy for public consultation.

3.2 The draft Policy took account of feedback received from the trade since the last 
Policy Review, with the final version presented to Committee taking account of 
responses received during the consultation period.

3.3 The Policy is important as it sets out the public safety standards we require, and 
these form the framework by which we undertake our statutory responsibilities in 
respect of hackney carriage and private hire vehicle licensing. These are 
particularly important in light of the findings of the report into child sexual 
exploitation in Rotherham.



3.4 The conclusions of the Casey report on Rotherham Metropolitan Borough 
Council following Professors Jay’s inquiry into child sexual exploitation in the 
borough emphasise how important licensing policy is in providing safeguards to 
protect public safety.

3.5 It emphasised the need for safety to be the uppermost concern of any licensing 
and enforcement regime when determining policy, setting standards and deciding 
how they are enforced. 

3.6 The inspectors uncovered serious weaknesses and concerns and judged that 
Rotherham had not taken sufficient steps to ensure that only fit and proper 
persons were permitted to hold a taxi licence and, therefore, could not provide 
assurances that the public including vulnerable people were safe.

3.7 The aim of the changes to this Policy is to protect public safety by improving 
standards and helping to professionalise the trade. 

3.8 Adoption of the policy will contribute to the delivery of the Council’s strategic 
objectives of Public Service Excellence and Economic Growth.

3.9 The proposed Policy changes have been subject of public consultation.  The 
responses can be seen at Appendix I to this report.

3.10  Details of the changes to the Policy and Conditions agreed by Licensing 
Committee for consultation are shown below.

Summary of Changes to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing Policy 
and Conditions:

Section Change Reason 
Penalty Points – 
Appeals to 
Licensing 
Committee for 
the award of 
points.

Ability to appeal award of 
individual penalty points.

Removal of appeal mechanism 
raised concern from members of 
trade.

Penalty Points 
for leaving 
vehicle 
unattended.

Penalty Points for leaving a 
Hackney Carriage 
unattended on a rank.

For clarification.

Penalty Points 
for carrying 
greater number 
of passengers 
than specified on 
licence.

Increase in number of points 
proposed from 6 to 9.

As a result of concern from the 
trade.

Penalty Points 
for using 
uninsured vehicle

Increase in number of points 
proposed from 6 to 12.

As a result of concern from the 
trade.



Section Change Reason 
Hackney and 
Private Hire 
Vehicle condition 
specifying 
“vehicle must 
remain in form 
submitted for 
licensing”

Removal of condition for 
wheelchair accessible 
vehicles fitted with wheelchair 
tracking to IVA approval.

Private Hire 
Vehicle Condition 
stating tariff/fees 
must be 
displayed.

Removal of Condition. Fares for PHVs not regulated by 
EHDC and should be agreed in 
advance.

4.0 Implications 

4.1 Resources: 

There are no resource implications in this report.

4.2 Legal

The powers for licensing of Hackney Carriages, Private Hire Vehicles, Private 
Hire Operators and Drivers dates back to the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  

The legislation has been subject to a recent review by the Law Commission, 
however the recommendations of this report are yet to be enshrined into law.

It is therefore important that a Local Authorities Policy for regulating the Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire trade is up to date and reflects current best practice to 
protect the public and provide a framework to assist decision makers.

4.3 Strategy:

Regularly reviewing a Policy which is so integral to governing a business sector 
is necessary to meet our strategic objective of public service excellence.

Listening to the trade making changes to Policy which will suit their business 
needs but still protect the public is key to the Council’s aim of becoming a 
business friendly Authority and objective of creativity and innovation.

4.4 Risks: 

Not updating the Policy means that current best practice is not reflected 
potentially putting the public at risk and potentially creating disharmony in the 
trade through inconsistent decisions.



4.5 Communications:

The public and all members of the licensed trade have been informed of the 
proposed Policy changes with details accessible to the public on the Council’s 
website.

All licence holders were written to with details of the changes and an open  
meeting on 23 June was held which all licence holders were invited to.  The 
minutes of this meeting are enclosed to this report as Appendix II.
Additionally the draft Policy was presented to the East Hampshire Taxi 
Association at their meeting on 17 June where members of the Association had 
the opportunity to ask questions.

The Council publicised the Policy review through a Press Release which was 
reported on by local newspapers.  Additionally media interviews with BBC Radio 
Surrey and That’s Solent TV took place.

4.6 For the Community:

The community will be provided with a safe form of public transport.  It is also 
right for members of the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire trades to expect a 
clear and up to date Licensing Policy to govern their activities.  

An Equality and Diversity Impact Assessment has been carried out and can be 
seen in Appendix IX.

5.0 Consultation

The proposals have been subject of public consultation during June and July.

During the two month consultation period, we have received xx responses.  
These are enclosed in Appendix I to this report.  A summary of those consulted 
and responses can be seen at Appendix III.

6.0 Appendices: 

Appendix I – Responses received to Policy Consultation
Appendix II – Minutes of Taxi Forum Meeting 17 June
Appendix III – Summary of parties consulted and responses
Appendix IV – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy
Appendix V – Combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver Conditions
Appendix VI – Restricted Private Hire Driver Licence Conditions
Appendix VII – Hackney Carriage Conditions
Appendix VIII – Private Hire Vehicle Conditions
Appendix IX – Private Hire Operator Conditions
Appendix X – Penalty Points Scheme
Appendix XI – Enforcement Policy
Appendix XII – Equality and Diversity Impact Assessment

Background Papers: 
None



Agreed and signed off by:

Legal Services: Nick Leach, 5 August 2015
Environmental Health Service Manager: Lorna Read, 5 August 2015
Executive Head: Andrew Pritchard, 5 August 2015 
 
Contact Officer: Mike Smith
Job Title: Licensing Team Leader
Telephone: Tel: 01730 234094
E-Mail: mike.smith@easthants.gov.uk





























































































Meeting to discuss change of policies in Council Chamber

23 June 2015

Present: 

Name Organisation Initials
Councillor Bob Ayer Chair EHDC Licensing Committee BA
Mike Smith Licensing Team Leader EHDC MS
Gill Stevens Licensing Officer EHDC GS
Hayley Hadaway Licensing Officer EHDC HH
Justine Allingham Licensing Support Officer EHDC JA
Graeme Fraser AMK GF
Peter Blackman Alton Eights PB
Kevin New Wilson’s Taxis KN
Chris Keech Wheeldrive CK
Barry Winter Barry’s Taxi BW

Cllr BA welcomed everyone to the meeting and thanked Operators for their time.

MS explained meeting held to discuss the changes in the taxi policy. MS explained the June newsletter 
outlined the changes and the new draft policies are online to view in detail. 

MS highlighted the major changes:

Drivers – application now require knowledge/literacy/numeracy test, one and three year badges. New 
private hire ‘restricted’ licence for Local Authority work – different  applicant criteria. Updating guidance on 
convictions. Photograph every six years. 

Vehicles - conditions regarding vehicles will not be so prescriptive. We will now allow seats to be tipped or 
tilted. Now accept space saver and run flat spare tyres. 

Operators – option to have a five year licence. Under recent Deregulation Bill operators can now sub-
contract work to operators in another council area.

Penalty Points (PP)– currently can be appealed. Will now able be able to be appealed against when total 
PP reach 12 points on licence. Appeal to committee. 

PB advised that he is very pleased with most of the changes, but stated that it is not fair that each set of PP 
cannot be appealed against at time of issue. PB felt very strongly that at the time of allocation you must be 
able to appeal. It could be 3 years before the opportunity to appeal is available and by this time the 
committee would not necessarily understand am appeal for an issue that was 3 years old. MS advised that 
the PP system is basically a mechanism of recording conduct. PB said he would not accept them if he 
didn’t have the right of appeal, it was wrong for no right of appeal. KN agreed with PB, he didn’t agree with 
the change in the PP policy. KN felt it wasn’t right that the licensing office could revoke the licence. MS 
advised once 12 points on licence  the driver/operator would be taken before the committee and given the 
opportunity to have their say. MS advised licensing committee could revoke a licence. Cllr BA advised it 
would be with great reluctance to revoke a licence. MS the PP system is to ensure consistency. PB thought 
the system as it is now is fair.

CK questioned leaving a vehicle unattended is 6 points. MS advised this is H/C.

CK questioned having more passengers than on the licence plate is 6 points, CK felt this was very serious 
offence that would warrant more than 6 points. PB added only 6 points for uninsured vehicle; this should 
also be considered more serious. KN asked if the point’s system generally would be reviewed. MS said the 
policy must be fair and proportionate. KN felt the PP accumulation should be last for 1 year not 3 years for 
an Operator. 



GF welcomed most of the changes especially the new proposals for a ‘Restricted’ licence. GF asked if the 
‘Restricted’ applicants would be required to have a knowledge test. MS explained driver’s would not be 
required to know each back street of the district, but would need knowledge of the main roads. 

CK asked if the all drivers could only be required to complete the MIDAS test and not the Btech. MS 
explained taxi driving is a professional trade and it requires a professional qualification. The government 
funding has been reduced (mostly withdrawn) drivers are now required to fund themselves. CK stated that 
he would like to know that the Btec wasn’t going to be stopped in the future if his company was going to 
pay to put new drivers through the Btec he would like reassurance that the requirement to complete the 
Btec will stay. MS advised yes. CK stated that the cost to licence a new driver is now about £700. GF said 
he kept a training budget and would pay for the Btec or MIDAS and wanted confirmation that to change 
from ‘restricted’ to an ordinary licence the only requirement would be to obtain the Btec. CK explained that 
different Local Authorities requirements were confusing. HCC, Surrey and WSCC had varying requirements 
that drivers had to complete i.e safeguarding, disability awareness, epilepsy. HCC do not accept EHDC 
obtained DBS Disclosures. MS has written to HCC to advise change of requirement from Adult and Child 
workforce to ‘Other’.

GF asked about new change in requirement for mechanical tests for P/H to have yearly mechanical tests 
until the 3 year MOT for new P/H vehicles.

PB asked about licencing Vauxhall Zafiras for 6 passengers even though the boot would not carry 6 
suitcases. MS advised that the two back seats were not suitable for licensing.

CK queried the condition that ‘the vehicle must remain in the form it is submitted for licensing’. CK advised 
wheelchair accessible vehicles sometimes used for six passengers and one wheelchair, sometimes used 
as three or four passengers and two wheelchairs, sometimes used for eight seated passengers. GS 
advised difficult to enforce if vehicle over five years old as this would be a way to get round the under five 
years old requirement. MS advised happy to remove the condition, but vehicle must be converted with 
wheelchair tracking to IVA approval. HH and GS to have training regarding wheelchair accessible vehicles 
and certification at AMK.

CK said there were references to Private Hire vehicles tariff/fees to be displayed. MS agreed to remove this 
requirement. MS also agreed to remove the requirement for index street maps in each vehicle. 

CK asked if PSV drivers need to have driving assessments. PB asked if PSV drivers need medicals. MS 
advised must treat everybody equally and fairly. It would be still a requirement. 

Following the meeting MS explained the new procedure for applying for the DBS disclosure online and then 
taking to Post Office to get validated.

MS advised that he had received an apology from the police who would have liked to have attended the 
meeting and talked to the taxi association to build up a good relationship between the police and the trade. 
MS advised we would arrange another meeting.

MS thanked everybody for their time and for coming to the meeting.

 



Summary of Consultation Responses

Interested Party Response

Hampshire Police – East Hants SNT No Response
Hampshire Police – Force Licensing No Response
EHDC – Environmental Health No Response
EHDC – Community Safety No Response
EHDC – Community Team No Response
EHDC – Community Access Officer No Response
EHDC – Equality and Diversity Officer No Response
EHDC – Economic Development No Response
EHDC – Parking Team No Response
EHDC – Legal No Response
EHDC – Planning No Response
Hampshire County Council – Highways No Response
Hampshire County Council – Trading 
Standards

No Response

Hampshire County Council – Road 
Safety

Support Policy on regular training of 
driver skills.  Would recommend driver 
training before licence issued.

Hampshire County Council – Children’s 
Services

No Response

Hampshire County Council – Passenger 
Transport Group

No Response

East Hampshire Taxi Association Does not agree with 3 year extension to 
penalty points scheme.
Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Licensing 
Officers Group

No Response

Basingstoke District Council Licensing No Response
Chichester District Council Licensing No Response
Eastleigh Borough Council Licensing No Response
Fareham Borough Council Licensing No Response
Gosport Borough Council Licensing No Response
Hart District Council Licensing No Response
Havant Borough Council Licensing No Response
Isle of Wight Council Licensing No Response
New Forest District Council Licensing No Response
Portsmouth City Council Licensing No Response
Rushmoor District Council Licensing No Response
Southampton City Council Licensing No Response
Test Valley Borough Council Licensing No Response
Waverley Borough Council Licensing No Response
Winchester City Council Licensing No Response
Institute of Licensing No Response
National Association of Licensing and 
Enforcement Officers

No Response



Blue Lamp Trust No Response
AA DriveTech No Response
Department for Transport No Response
DVSA No Response
National Private Hire Association No Response
National Taxi Association No Response
Licensed Private Hire Car Association No Response
Community Transport Association No Response

Bordon Tyre and Exhaust Centre No Response
Windmill Garage, Horndean No Response
Froxfield Servcie Station No Response
Station Garage, Liphook No Response
Phillips Garage, Alton No Response
Petersfield Exhaust and Tyre Services No Response

Robert Cook – Licensed Driver Does not agree with 3 year extension to 
penalty points scheme.
Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.
Minimum age for a licensed driver should 
be 25.

Victor Chapple – Licensed Driver Current penalty point system should not 
change.

Mark Blackman – Licensed Driver Does not agree with 3 year extension to 
penalty points scheme.
Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.

Michael Howard – Licensed Driver Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.

Derek Taylor – Licensed Driver Does not agree with 3 year extension to 
penalty points scheme.
Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.

Juliana Howard – Licensed Driver Does not agree with 3 year extension to 
penalty points scheme.
Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.

Barry Wearn – Licensed Driver Does not agree with 3 year extension to 
penalty points scheme.
Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.

Andy Johnsen – Licensed Driver Does not agree with 3 year extension to 
penalty points scheme.
Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.

Kevin New – Licensed Driver and 
Director, Wilson’s Taxis

Does not agree with 3 year extension to 
penalty points scheme.
Does not agree with removing right of 



appeal for individual penalty points.
Colin Speller – Licensed Driver Does not agree with 3 year extension to 

penalty points scheme.
Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.

Peter Blackman – Licensed Driver and 
Director, Alton 8s Taxis

Does not agree with 3 year extension to 
penalty points scheme.
Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.

Chris Gascoigne – Licensed Driver Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.

Kenneth Bailey – Licensed Driver Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.

Jaime Stanbridge – Licensed Driver Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.

Hussein Kandros – Licensed Driver Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.

Thomas Riddle – Licensed Driver Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.

Charles Wooster – Licensed Driver Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.

John Dean – Licensed Driver Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.

Kevin Midgley – Licensed Driver Does not agree with 3 year extension to 
penalty points scheme.
Does not agree with removing right of 
appeal for individual penalty points.





East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

1

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

POLICY STATEMENT

HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE 
LICENSING

August 2015



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

2

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

POLICY STATEMENT

HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING

CONTENTS

Paragraph Title Page Number
Title Page 1

CONTENTS 2

1. INTRODUCTION 3

2. ENFORCEMENT AND COMPLIANCE 4

3. LICENSING FEES 4

4. TABLE OF HACKNEY CARRIGE FARES 5

5. TAXI RANK PROVISION 5

6. ILLEGALLY PLYING FOR HIRE 5

7. DECISIONS OF THE LICENSING OFFICER, LICENSING 
COMMITTEE AND APPEALS PROCEDURE

6

8. DATA PROTECTION 6

9. CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 7

10. CONSULTATION 7

11. REVIEW 7

12. REQUIREMENTS FOR DRIVERS 7

13. REQUIREMENTS FOR VEHICLES 18

14. REQUIREMENTS FOR OPERATORS 24

Version 1.0 Date 15/05/15 Control Draft for public consultation
Version 1.1 Date 03/08/15 Control Final version for Committee 

Approval following public 
consultation



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

3

1.   INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The purpose of this Policy is to set out how East Hampshire District Council (the 
Council) as a Licensing Authority, intends to carry out the licensing and control of 
Hackney Carriage (Taxi) and Private Hire (PH) trades within the District.  

1.2 The overriding objective of the Licensing Authority is to protect the safety of the 
public. The Licensing Authority is concerned to ensure:

 That a licence holder is a fit and proper person
 That the licence holder does not pose a threat to the public
 That the public are safeguarded from a dishonest person, and
 The safeguarding of children, young and vulnerable persons. 

1.3 The following legislation allows the Licensing Authority to fulfil its aim: 
 Section 37 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847
 Section 45 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

1.4 In addition, byelaws which apply to the district of East Hampshire District Council 
have been made under Section 68 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847, Section 65(7) 
of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and Section 171 of the 
Public Health Act 1875.

1.5 The Licensing Authority has a responsibility to ensure all operators and drivers are fit 
and proper to hold licences, and vehicles are safe before they are allowed to operate.  
Conditions, which are attached and form part of this Policy will apply to licences to 
ensure public safety is protected.

1.6 This policy provides guidance to any person with an interest in public and private 
hire licensing. In particular, but not exclusively:

 Applicants for drivers’ licenses,
 Existing licensed drivers whose licences are being reviewed,
 Licensing Officers,
 Members of the Licensing Committee, and
 Magistrates hearing appeals against local authority decisions.

1.7 Where Licensing Officers have delegated powers to grant licences, they will utilise 
these guidelines when making a decision to grant a licence. In all other cases 
applications for licences will be referred to the Licensing Committee.  Whilst Officers and 
the Committee will have regard to the guidelines contained in the Policy, each case will 
be considered on its individual merits and, where the circumstances demand, the 
Committee or Officer may depart from the guidelines. 



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

4

2.  ENFORCEMENT AND COMPLIANCE

2.1 Enforcement and compliance activity will adhere to the Council’s Licensing 
Enforcement Policy.  The principles of this Policy are based on the Regulators 
Compliance Code.  This Code uses the four pillars of openness, proportionality, 
consistency and helpfulness.

2.2 The purpose of compliance and enforcement action is to:

 Protect the public,
 Change the behaviour of offenders,
 Deter future non-compliance, and
 Provide a fair trading environment for compliant businesses.

2.3 The Licensing Enforcement Policy includes the provision to issue Penalty Points.  
The primary objective of the Penalty Points scheme is to improve the level of 
compliance amongst licensed drivers, taxi proprietors and private hire vehicle operators.  
The scheme will act as a record of a licence holder’s behaviour and conduct during a fit 
and proper person assessment

2.4 The Penalty Points scheme does not prejudice the Licensing Authority’s ability to 
take other forms of action, such as:

 Offering advice, verbal warnings/requests for action, the use of letters and the 
issue of licensing inspection reports,

 Issuing a formal caution,
 Suspension and revocation of licences, and
 Prosecution.

2.5 Test purchasing operations may be used as a part of the Licensing Authority’s 
overall strategy to assess and improve compliance with requirements and conditions.

3.  LICENSING FEES

3.1 Dependant on the specific licence, the fees include elements for administration costs 
and compliance, which will be reviewed annually in accordance with statutory 
provisions, normally in line with the Council’s fees and charges setting process.  
Applicants will be advised of the fees and charges at the time of application or upon 
request.

3.2 Any variation to fees will be subject to public consultation, as required by the 
relevant legislation, and will be approved by the Council’s Licensing Committee.



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

5

4.  TABLE OF FARES

4.1 Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 states that “a 
district council may fix the rates or fares within the district for a time as well as a distance, and 
all other charges in connection with the hire of a vehicle or with the arrangements for the hire of 
a vehicle, to be paid in respect of the hire of hackney carriages by means of a table (hereafter in 
this section  referred to as a “table of fares”) made or varied in accordance with the provisions 
of this section.”

4.2 By ‘fixing’ the fares, the Licensing Authority is setting the maximum fare that taxis can 
charge; taxi drivers may charge less if they choose.  Extra charges not listed within the table of 
fares may not be charged.  In practice, it is customary for taxi drivers to set the fares at the rate 
fixed by the Licensing Authority.  

4.3 The Licensing Authority’s Table of Fares will be reviewed annually in December.

4.4 The review of fares will take into account feedback from the public, trade and other bodies, 
review of motoring costs such as fuel prices, licensing fees, and a comparison with fares set by 
other Local Authorities.

4.5 Any variations to fares will be subject to public consultation, as required by the 
relevant legislation, and will be approved by the Council’s Licensing Committee.

5. TAXI RANK PROVISION

5.1 The provision of taxi-rank space will be reviewed every three years with this Policy.

6.  ILLEGALLY PLYING FOR HIRE

6.1 Illegal ‘plying for hire’ occurs when a person driving a vehicle, other than a licensed 
hackney carriage, takes a fare that has not been pre-booked.  It is irrelevant whether the 
driver holds a licence to drive a hackney carriage as the offence is plying for hire without 
a hackney carriage vehicle proprietor’s licence.

6.2 A hackney carriage can only ply for hire in the area in which they are licensed.  It is 
illegal to ply for hire outside the area in which they are licensed.  

6.3 Illegally plying for hire creates the possibility of invalidating insurance.

6.4 The penalty for illegally plying for hire is up to £2500. Insurance offences can carry a 
minimum 6 penalty points on a driver’s DVLA licence and bring into question the fit and 
proper person assessment.

6.5 Any driver, vehicle or operator licensed by the Authority may have their licensed 
revoked if found to have illegally plied for hire.



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

6

7.  DECISIONS OF THE LICENSING OFFICER, LICENSING COMMITTEE AND THE 
APPEALS PROCEDURE

7.1 Where Licensing Officers have delegated powers to grant or refuse licences, they 
will utilise the guidelines set in this Policy when making a decision to grant a licence. In 
all other cases applications for licences will be referred to the Licensing Committee. 
Whilst Officers and the Committee will have regard to the guidelines contained in the 
Policy, each case will be considered on its individual merits and, where the 
circumstances demand, the Committee / Officer may depart from the guidelines.

7.2 Any applicant who is refused a driver’s licence on the grounds that the Licensing 
Authority is not satisfied that he or she is a fit and proper person to hold such a licence 
has the right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the notice of refusal.

7.3 Any applicant who is refused a Hackney Carriage vehicle licence has the right of 
appeal to the Crown Court.  

7.4 Any applicant refused an Operator licence on the grounds that the Licensing 
Authority is not satisfied that he or she is a fit and proper person to hold such a licence 
has the right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the notice of refusal.

7.5 Any licence holder whose licence is suspended or revoked has a right to appeal to 
the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the notice of suspension or revocation.

7.6 Where a new condition is applied to a licence, the licence holder is entitled to appeal 
to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days from the addition of the condition.

8.  DATA PROTECTION

8.1 The Council may use the information submitted on any application form for any 
licence(s) for the purpose of its statutory function(s).

8.2 The Council is under a duty to protect the public funds it administers, and to this end 
may use the information provided for the prevention and detection of fraud. It may also 
share this information with other bodies responsible for auditing or administering public 
funds for these purposes.

8.3 Please note that the Council may provide information submitted on any application 
form for a licence or permission to other statutory Authorities, such as Her Majesty’s 
Revenue and Customs (HMRC), The Audit Commission, Home Office and Law 
Enforcement Agencies.

8.4 The Council will maintain public registers of licensed drivers and hackney carriage 
proprietors and vehicles.



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

7

9.  CRIME AND DISORDER ACT

9.1 Under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Council is under a duty to 
exercise its various functions with regard to the likely effect on, and the need to do all it 
reasonably can, to prevent crime and disorder in its area.

9.2 This means that when carrying out its licensing functions, the Council must consider 
the impact its decisions might have on crime and disorder and community safety, 
whether it is a reduction in crime or a potential increase in crime and disorder.

9.3 The Council may also share information with other Authorities for the purposes of 
preventing and detecting crime.

10. CONSULTATION

10.1 It is the Council’s policy to consult with all interested parties before making 
decisions on matters referred to in this policy. These include the Police, the Highways 
Authority, licensed hackney carriage and private hire representatives and others thought 
appropriate.  These may include groups representing disabled people, the Chambers of 
Commerce, Organisations with a wider transport interest and special interest groups.

11.  REVIEW

11.1 This Policy will be reviewed every 3 years or sooner if there are relevant legislative 
changes.

12.  REQUIREMENTS FOR DRIVERS 

12.1 The Licensing Authority offers two types of licenses to drive vehicles:
 

i. The Combined (Dual) Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver’s Licence 
allowing drivers to drive any vehicle licensed by the Licensing Authority; and

ii. The Restricted Private Hire Driver’s Licence allowing drivers only to drive a 
Private Hire Vehicle undertaking a Local Authority Contract.

12.2 Where the Licensing Authority issues a Licence to drivers it will be for a maximum 
of 36 calendar months from the date of issue.

12.3 Under sections 51 and 59 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976 the Licensing Authority must not grant a licence for a Private Hire Vehicle Driver 
or a Hackney Carriage Driver unless satisfied that the applicant is a fit and proper 
person to hold a licence and has been authorised to drive a motor car for at least twelve 
months prior to the application. 

The authority to drive a car, the driving licence, if not issued by the UK Driver and 
Vehicle Licencing Authority (DVLA), must comply with the requirements detailed by the 
DVLA to drive vehicles within the UK.



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

8

12.4 In order to determine whether an applicant is a “fit and proper” person to hold a 
licence, the following requirements in this Policy will apply to new and current licence 
holders.

12.5 New applicants for the Combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Licence 
and Restricted Private Hire Driver’s Licence:

The application for a licence to drive a Hackney Carriage and / or a Private Hire Vehicle 
must be accompanied by satisfactory evidence of the following conditions below: 
(incomplete applications will not be deemed to have been made until such time as they 
are completed).

 Completed application forms payment of the required fees.

 The applicant is over 21 years of age at the time of application.

 The applicant has the right to live and work in the country. 

 An enhanced Criminal Record Check and evidence that they are not on a child 
and / or vulnerable adult barring list.

 A Medical Report from applicants own Doctor (GP) which will be sent to the 
Licensing Authority’s nominated Medical Examiner to satisfy that the applicant 
meets the DVLAs Group 2 Medical Standard.

 That the applicant is authorised to drive a vehicle of the same classification as 
that which the licence will allow them to drive and has competed the consent for 
the Licensing Authority to verify their DVLA licence record.

 That the applicant has a minimum of three years post-qualification driving 
experience at the time of application and has passed an approved driving 
assessment and satisfactory certificate of competence.

 That the applicant has sufficient ability to speak English and to understand 
spoken English to provide the service that they wish to be licensed for.

 If the applicant is a non-UK national, a Certificate of Good 
Conduct/Character/Citizenship from the Ministry of Justice from their country of 
origin or UK Embassy.

 If the applicant has lived abroad for more than a month since the age of 10 years 
old, a Certificate of Good Conduct/Character/Citizenship from the Ministry of 
Justice for particular country/countries.

o Ex Service Personnel are exempted from the requirement of obtaining 
Certificates of Good Conduct for their periods of military service.  Proof of 
period of military service is required.



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

9

 The applicant has passed the Licensing Authority’s knowledge test assessing: 
knowledge of the district’s road network, basic literacy and numeracy, the 
Highway Code and a basic awareness of the role of a driver.

 Pass the required Qualification detailed in Section 12.6 Qualifications for Driver 
within 12 months of being granted a licence.

In the case where an applicant is not able to obtain a Certificate of Good Conduct or 
equivalent, the applicant must provide proof of application for a Certificate of Good 
Conduct.  The applicant must also provide a full previous UK address history for a 
minimum of 10 years, along with two references from persons of standing in the 
community or with a professional background, who have been known to the applicant for 
a minimum of 5 years.  These referees cannot be related to the applicant or members of 
the taxi/private hire trade.

In the case of an applicant with convictions, the Licensing Authority will assess each 
case on its merits to determine whether the applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a 
licence.  The Licensing Authority will also have regard to the guidelines set out in the 
Guidelines on Convictions in Section 12.7 below.

12.6 Qualifications for Drivers

Driver training is an essential part of ensuring that drivers of licensed vehicles meet the 
high standards that the public expect of them.  It is therefore a requirement for all new 
applicants to pass a Qualification approved by the Licensing Authority suitable for their 
role within 12 months of being granted a licence.  This will help to ensure they develop 
the skills and knowledge they need in order to keep themselves, their passengers, the 
public and their vehicles safe.  

No Hackney Carriage or Private Hire driver licences (granted for 12 months) will be 
renewed where the applicant has not completed this course.  This includes drivers who 
allow their licence to expire and then apply again as a new driver in order to circumvent 
the qualification requirement.  For licences which are initially granted for longer than 12 
months, the licence will be suspended after 12 months from the date of issue until the 
licence holder has completed the required qualification.  

The required qualifications are:

For holders of the Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licence:
A BTEC Qualification, “Introduction to the Role of the Professional Taxi and Private Hire 
Driver” or suitable equivalent agreed in writing before commencement of the 
qualification with the Licensing Department.



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

10

For holders of the Restricted Private Hire Licence:
The MiDAS Qualification accredited by the Community Transport Association (UK) or 
suitable equivalent agreed in writing before commencement of the qualification with the 
Licensing Department.

12.7 Guidelines relating to the relevance of convictions for new and existing drivers

The purpose of the guidelines in this policy is to provide guidance on the criteria taken 
into account by the Licensing Authority when determining whether or not an applicant or 
an existing licence holder is a fit and proper person to hold a hackney carriage and / or 
private hire vehicle licence.  

There may be occasions where it is appropriate to depart from the guidelines, for 
example where the offence is a one-off occasion or there are mitigating circumstances 
or alternatively where there are many or continuous offences which may show a pattern 
of offending and unfitness.

A person with a conviction for a serious offence need not be automatically barred from 
obtaining a licence, but would normally be expected to:

 Remain free of conviction for an appropriate period; and
 Show adequate evidence that he or she is a fit and proper person to hold a 

licence, with the onus on the applicant to produce such evidence.

Simply remaining free of conviction may not generally be regarded as adequate 
evidence that a person is a fit and proper person to hold a licence.

Where an applicant has been convicted of a criminal offence, the licensing authority 
cannot review the merits of the conviction [Nottingham City Council v. Mohammed 
Farooq (1998)].

The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exceptions)(Amendment) Order 2002, allows 
the licensing authority to take into account all convictions recorded against an applicant 
or the holder of a private hire vehicle or hackney carriage driver’s licence, whether spent 
or not. Therefore the licensing authority will have regard to all relevant convictions, 
particularly where there is a long history of offending or a recent pattern of repeat 
offending. 

Consideration of disclosed criminal history

Under the provisions of Sections 51, 55, and 59, Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976, the licensing authority is required to ensure that an applicant for 
the grant or renewal of a hackney carriage and/or a private hire vehicle drivers’ licence 
and/or private hire vehicle operator’s licence is a ‘fit and proper’ person to hold such a 
licence. However, if an applicant has any convictions, warnings, cautions or charges 
awaiting trial, the Licensing Authority will consider the following:

 How relevant the offence(s) are to the licence being applied for,



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

11

 The seriousness of the offence(s),
 When the offence(s) were committed,
 The date of conviction(s),
 Circumstances of the individual concerned,
 Sentence imposed by the Court,
 The applicant’s age at the time of conviction,
 Whether they form part of a pattern of offending,
 Any other character check considered reasonable (e.g. personal references), and
 Any other factors that might be relevant.

Existing holders of drivers’ licences are required to notify the licensing authority in 
writing within seven days of being arrested, receiving a driving licence endorsement, 
fixed penalty notice or criminal conviction (including cautions).  

Applicants can discuss further what effect a caution/conviction may have on any 
application by contacting the licensing officer in confidence for advice.

The licensing authority conducts enhanced disclosures from the Disclosure and Barring 
Service (DBS) of any applicant for a driver licence. The licensing authority follows the 
DBS’s Code of Practice on the fair use of disclosure information. 

So that the licensing authority receives relevant information as quickly as possible in 
order to take appropriate and proportionate action to protect public safety, it is the 
licensing authority’s policy to require applicants to register for the DBS’s update service 
and to nominate the licensing authority to receive updates. Registration lasts for 1 year 
and costs £13 per year.  Licensees are expected to provide evidence of continuous 
registration and nomination throughout the duration of their licence.

The licensing authority is also entitled to use other records and information that may be 
available to it in determining applications or an entitlement to continue holding a licence.  
This may include information held by the licensing authority or other licensing 
authorities, and information disclosed by the police.  

It is an offence for any person knowingly or recklessly to make a false declaration or to 
omit any material particular in giving information required by the application for a licence. 
Where an applicant has made a false statement or a false declaration on their 
application for the grant or renewal of a licence, the licence will likely be refused.

Serious offences involving violence

Licensed drivers have close regular contact with the public.  A firm line is taken with 
those who have convictions for offences involving violence. 
An application should be refused if the applicant has a conviction for an offence that 
involved the loss of life, such as: 

 Murder
 Manslaughter



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

12

 Manslaughter or culpable homicide while driving

In other cases anyone of a violent disposition will likely be refused to be licensed until at 
least 5 years free of such conviction. However, given the range of the offences that 
involve violence, consideration must be given to the nature of the conviction. 

A licence should not be granted where the applicant has a conviction for an offence 
such as: 

 Terrorism offences
 Arson
 Malicious wounding or grievous bodily harm which is racially aggravated 
 Actual bodily harm which is racially aggravated 
 Grievous bodily harm with intent 
 Robbery
 Possession of firearm or weapon
 Riot
 Assault Police
 Common assault with racially aggravated 
 Violent disorder
 Resisting arrest
 Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences 

which replace the above

A licence should not be granted where the applicant has a conviction for an offence or 
similar offence(s) which replace the below offences and the conviction is less than 5 
years prior to the date of application:

 Racially-aggravated criminal damage 
 Racially-aggravated offence 
 Common assault
 Assault occasioning actual bodily harm 
 Affray
 S.5 Public Order Act 1986 offence (harassment, alarm or distress)
 S.4 Public Order Act 1986 offence (fear of provocation of violence)
 S4A Public Order Act 1986 offence (intentional harassment, alarm or distress)
 Obstruction
 Criminal damage
 Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences 

which replace the above

A licence should not be granted if an applicant has more than one conviction in the last 
10 years for an offence of a violent nature.



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

13

Sex and indecency offences

As licensed drivers often carry unaccompanied and vulnerable passengers, applicants 
with convictions for sexual offences must be closely scrutinised. 
An application should be refused where the applicant has a conviction for an offence 
such as:

 Rape
 Assault by penetration
 Offences involving children or vulnerable adults
 Sexual assault
 Indecent assault
 Exploitation of prostitution
 Trafficking for sexual exploitation 
 Possession of indecent photographs, child pornography etc.
 Or any sex or indecency offence that was committed in the course of employment 

as a taxi or PHV driver
 Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences 

which replace the above.

In addition to the above the Licensing Authority should not grant a licence to any 
applicant who is currently on the Sex Offenders Register.
 
Dishonesty, theft or similar offences

A licensed PHV or taxi driver is expected to be a trustworthy person. They deal with 
cash transactions and valuable property may be left in their vehicles. The widespread 
practice of delivering unaccompanied property is indicative of the trust that business 
people place in licensed drivers. Moreover, it is comparatively easy for a dishonest 
driver to defraud the public by demanding more than the legal or agreed fare.  For all 
these reasons, a serious view is taken of any conviction involving dishonesty.

In general, a minimum period of 5 years free of conviction or at least 5 years from 
completion of sentence (whichever is longer) should be required before granting a 
licence. Offences involving dishonesty include:

 theft
 burglary
 fraud
 benefit fraud
 handling or receiving stolen goods
 forgery
 conspiracy to defraud
 obtaining money or property by deception
 other deception
 taking a vehicle without consent
 and any similar offences



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

14

 Or any similar offences (including attempted or conspiracy to commit) offences 
which replace the above

A licence may not be granted if an applicant has more than one conviction for a 
dishonesty offence.

Drugs

A serious view is taken of any drug related offence. The nature and quantity of the 
drugs, whether for personal use or supply are issues which should be considered.

A licence should not be granted where the applicant has a conviction for an offence for 
the supply of drugs.

Where the applicant has more than one conviction for offences related to the possession 
of drugs, the applicant should be required to show a period of at least 5 years free of 
conviction.

If there is evidence of persistent drugs use, misuse or dependency a specialist medical 
examination (in accordance with DVLA Group 2 medical standards) will be required 
before the licence is granted.  

If the applicant was an addict then they should be required to show evidence of 5 years 
free from drug taking after detoxification treatment.

Drink driving/driving under the influence of drugs/using a mobile phone whilst driving

As licensees are professional vocational drivers, a serious view is taken of convictions 
for driving, or being in charge of a vehicle while under the influence of drink or drugs. An 
isolated incident would not necessarily debar an applicant from proceeding on the 
restoration of his DVLA driving licence but he should be warned as to the significant risk 
to his licence status in the event of re-offending. Normally at least 3 years, after the 
restoration of the driving licence following a drink/drug drive conviction should elapse 
before an application will be considered. If there is any suggestion that the applicant is 
alcohol or drug dependent, a satisfactory special medical report must be provided before 
the application can be allowed to proceed.

Applicants should also be aware of the serious risk posed by driving whilst using a 
mobile phone.  

A licence should not be granted if an applicant has more than one conviction for an 
offence of driving under the influence of drink or drugs or whilst using a mobile phone.

Driving offences involving the loss of life

A very serious view is to be taken of any applicant who has been convicted of a driving 
offence that resulted in the loss of life.



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

15

A licence should not be granted where the applicant has a conviction for an offence 
such as:

 Causing death by dangerous driving
 Causing death by careless driving whilst under the influence of drink or drugs
 Causing death by driving: unlicensed, disqualified or uninsured drivers
 or any similar offences

Other driving offences

As licensees are professional vocational drivers, a serious view is taken of convictions 
for driving.  Convictions for minor traffic offences, e.g. obstruction, waiting in a restricted 
street, etc should not prevent a person from holding a licence.  If sufficient penalty points 
have been accrued to require a period of disqualification a taxi licence or private hire 
licence will only be issued when a valid driving licence is held and the applicant able to 
demonstrate a period of at least 12 months free from further motoring offences.  Should 
sufficient penalty points be accrued leading to a period of disqualification any licence 
issued should be revoked.

Any conviction for major offences, e.g. reckless driving, driving without due care and 
attention, driving whilst disqualified or excessive speeding offences etc will form part of 
the fit and proper person assessment with the Licensing Authority expecting applicants 
to have a period of 3 years free from conviction.  More than one conviction for this type 
of offence during any licence period may result in any issued licence being revoked 

Licensing offences

Certain offences under taxi legislation such as plying for hire, overcharging and refusing 
to carry disabled persons would normally prevent a licence being granted or renewed 
until a period of 3 years has passed since. 

A licence may not be granted if an applicant has more than one conviction for a 
licensing related offence.

Insurance offences

A serious view will be taken of convictions of driving or being in charge of a vehicle 
without insurance. 
An isolated incident in the past will not necessarily stop a licence being granted provided 
he/she has been free of conviction for 3 years, however strict warning should be given 
as to future behaviour.  

A licence may not be granted if an applicant has more than one conviction for an 
insurance related offence.  



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

16

An operator found guilty of aiding and abetting the driving of passengers for hire and 
reward whilst without insurance will likely have his operators’ licence revoked 
immediately and be prevented from holding a licence for at least 5 years.  

Outstanding charges or summonses

If the individual is the subject of an outstanding charge or summons their application can 
continue to be processed, but the application will need to be reviewed at the conclusion 
of proceedings. 

If the outstanding charge or summons involves a serious offence and the individual’s 
conviction history indicates a possible pattern of unlawful behaviour or character trait, 
then in the interests of public safety the application should be refused. 

Non-conviction information

If an applicant has, on more than one occasion, been arrested or charged, but not 
convicted, for a serious offence which suggests he could be a danger to the public, 
consideration will be given to refusing the application. 

In assessing the action to take, the safety of the travelling public must be the paramount 
concern.

Cautions

Admission of guilt is required before a caution can be issued. Every case will be 
considered on its own merits including the details and nature of the offence.
Each case will be decided on its own merits, and in all cases, the overriding 
consideration will be public safety.

12.8 Renewal Applications

All applicants renewing their licence must satisfy the following criteria:

 Completed Application form and fee
 Certificate of Qualification as detailed in Section 12.6 Qualifications for Drivers
 Provide DBS, medical, DVLA consent and photograph at the time of renewal, in 

line with the frequencies below.  

DBS

Renewed every three years, unless the applicant has signed up to the Update Service 
and provided the Licensing Authority the necessary consent to access this record.



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

17

DVLA mandate

A mandate, renewed every three years to consent for the Licensing Authority to access 
the licence holder’s DVLA driving licence record.

Medical

A DVLA Group 2 medical report (GP) once up to 45th birthday then every five years up 
to 65th birthday then annually thereafter.  All medical reports will be sent to the Licensing 
Authority’s nominated medical practitioner to determine whether the DVLA Group 2 
standard is met.

Photograph

A driver is required to update their photograph every 6 years.

Any driver not providing their DBS, medical report, DVLA consent or photograph as 
required will be suspended or not have their licence renewed.

12.9 Re-application after refusal

In the case where a licence has been refused, revoked or has expired during a period of 
suspension, no new application will be considered for a minimum period of 12 months 
from the date of refusal, revocation or expiry.

12.10 Driver Conduct

Licensed drivers are expected to conduct themselves in a proper and civil manner and 
to be clean and tidy in appearance.  It is the role of the driver to be helpful to the public 
and convey them in a comfortable and safe manner.  Drivers should maintain a high 
level of personal hygiene, be prompt, polite and helpful.  

Drivers not conducting themselves in the manner expected will be dealt with under the 
enforcement options available to the Licensing Authority.  This can include written/verbal 
advice and warnings, penalty points and suspension, revocation or non-renewal of a 
licence.

Under the Health Act 2006 smoking is not permitted in a licensed vehicle.  To avoid any 
doubt, the use of electronic cigarettes or other vaporisers is also not permitted in a 
licensed vehicle at any time.

12.11 Dress code

Drivers are expected to adhere to the following dress code when working:
 Shirts/t-shirts and sweat tops should cover shoulders and must be capable of 

being inside trousers or shorts. 
 Tailored shorts may be worn. 



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

18

 Footwear should fit around the heel of the foot, flip-flops or similar beach type 
footwear is not permitted.

 The following standards of dress are not acceptable:
o Dirty clothing 
o Ripped, snagged or holes in clothing 
o Words or graphics on any clothing that is offensive or suggestive 
o Sports shirts, eg football, rugby or cricket tops 
o Track suits 
o Camouflage
o Studs or sharp edges to clothing 
o Pronounced heels to shoes 
o Short skirts 

12.11 Notification of any changes in circumstance

Licensed drivers must notify the Licensing Authority, within 7 days of any change of 
name or contact details.

Licensed drivers must notify the Licensing Authority within 7 days of any offences, 
including convictions, cautions, fixed penalty notices and motoring offences, or if they 
are subject of criminal investigation.

13.  REQUIREMENTS FOR VEHICLES

13.1 Applications to licence or renew a Hackney Carriage licence or Private Hire vehicle 
must satisfy the following criteria:

 Vehicles must be of an age and model acceptable to the Licensing Authority (see 
below)

 Complete the required application form and pay the required fee(s)
 Provide proof of insurance for Hire and Reward (for Taxis) or Private Hire and 

Reward (for PHVs), such as a certificate or cover note valid for the date the 
licence is intended to come into force.  

  A valid MOT certificate for the date the licence is intended to come into force.    
 V5 Registration document or other equivalent proof of ownership.
 All vehicles presented for initial licensing must pass a mechanical inspection at a 

Licensing Authority approved testing centre.

13.2 Vehicle Specifications

All licensed vehicles must comply with the requirements of any Acts and   Regulations 
relating to motor vehicles in force during the period.

Purpose-built vehicles are not compulsory.  The Licensing Authority will accept 
applications for family sized saloon/hatchback/estate cars, 4 x 4s, MPVs and minibuses 
up to 8 seats to be licensed.  



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

19

The Licensing Authority will inspect all vehicles presented for initial licensing to ensure 
the vehicle is suitable for use as a taxi or private hire vehicle

Suitability, and the number of passengers will be determined by:

 Provision of comfortable and suitably upholstered and easily accessible seating 
with ample leg and head room for all passengers.  Seating capacity will be 
calculated on the basis of a passenger unit seat width of 400 mm measured 
laterally across the middle of any seat and 400 mm depth of seat measured from 
the front edge of each seat unit,

 Each seat unit must have a fitted seat belt,
 Provision must be made for carrying luggage within the vehicle which is sufficient 

for the number of persons to be carried in the vehicle,
 Adequate heating and ventilation must be provided to ensure the comfort of driver 

and passengers,
 Windows must be provided to the sides and rear of the vehicle,
 Vehicles must have a minimum of four doors,
 Passengers’ doors must be capable of being readily opened from inside and 

outside the vehicle by one operation of the latch mechanism, and
 The vehicle must be right hand drive.

13.3 Vehicle Age

No vehicle shall be more than five years old at the time of initial licensing; calculated 
from the date the vehicle was first registered.  

In the case where the licence of a vehicle expires and there is an application to renew 
the licence of a vehicle over 5 years old, this application may be granted in cases where:

 not more than three months have elapsed since the expiry of the previous 
licence, and

 the applicant is the previous licence holder.

The vehicle will however be subject to the full new application fee, inspection by the 
Licensing Authority and a mechanical test at an approved testing station.

In order to encourage wheelchair accessible vehicles to be licensed, the age restriction 
will not apply to vehicles which are accessible and seat at least one wheelchair 
presented for initial licensing.

In all cases the final decision will be made on the vehicle’s safety and condition by the 
Licensing Authority.

13.4 Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles

The vehicle must remain in the form it is submitted for licensing, unless the vehicle is 
purpose built or converted with wheelchair tracking to IVA approval.  



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

20

The applicant must be able to produce a copy of the relevant type approval certificate 
upon the request of the Licensing Authority before a licence is issued.  The vehicle must 
be capable of carrying a passenger seated in a wheelchair safely and securely.  
Wheelchair access must be gained by ramps or a mechanical lift.   Any equipment 
necessary to safely and securely load and carry the wheelchair and its passenger must 
be carried and maintained in working order on the vehicle so long as the vehicle is 
licensed.  It shall be the responsibility of the vehicle’s proprietor to ensure that the driver 
can safely operate the equipment provided.

13.5 Vehicle Examination

A full vehicle safety check is needed for the protection of the driver and public.  Before 
any application is considered, the vehicle to be licensed must have been inspected and 
approved by a Licensing Authority appointed testing station.  

New vehicles with delivery mileage only (a maximum of 200 miles) do not require a 
mechanical test upon initial application.

The annual MOT test is not sufficiently detailed for this purpose due to the high mileage 
of taxi and private hire vehicles.  The Licensing Authority therefore has a testing 
programme for licensed vehicles.  The mechanical vehicle test will be carried out by a 
nominated, MOT registered garage within the East Hampshire District.  The frequency of 
these checks will be determined by the age of the vehicle but may be more frequent if 
there are additional safety concerns e.g. Local intelligence or if the vehicle has been 
involved in an accident. 

Licensed vehicles must be submitted for inspection according to the Licensing 
Authority’s approved programme:

 Hackney Carriages (with an MOT certificate) between one and six years old: once 
a year.

 Private Hire Vehicles (with an MOT certificate) between three and six years old: 
once a year.

 Private Hire Vehicles (without an MOT certificate) between one and three years 
old: twice a year.

 All Vehicles over six years old: twice a year.  

13.6  CCTV

In the interests of driver safety and for the purposes of preventing and detecting crime, 
the use of CCTV is encouraged in all licensed vehicles.  

All vehicles fitted with CCTV must display an advisory notice in a prominent position 
inside the vehicle advising customers.



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

21

13.7 Tyres 

 All road tyres must be at the correct pressure when used on the road
 All tyres must be suitable for the vehicle.
 A minimum of 2mm of tread is required across the whole width and around the 

entire circumference of each tyre
 Only tyres of a similar construction (eg steel braced radials) may be used on one 

axle.
 Remoulded or re-cut tyres are not acceptable.

13.8 Spare Wheels

All vehicles must carry as a minimum a spacesaver spare wheel, to be used as a means 
of conveying the vehicle to a place where the tyre can be changed in the result of a 
puncture.

Vehicles may not carry a spare wheel if:

 All wheels are fitted with a suitable ‘run flat’ tyre mechanism on all four wheels.  In 
the case of a ‘run flat’ tyre getting a puncture, the tyre must be replaced at the 
earliest opportunity or in any case on or before the maximum number of miles 
recommended by the manufacturer is travelled.

 The vehicle belongs to a Private Hire operator who has another means of 
conveying passengers to their destination safely and without inconvenience, such 
as the ability of a fleet of licensed vehicles which can be called upon.

In all cases, the final decision will rest with the Licensing Authority.

13.9 Maintenance

Vehicles, including all fittings must be well maintained and kept clean and in good 
working order.  At any reasonable time the Licensing Authority may test and inspect 
vehicles.  If a vehicle is found not properly maintained or not in good working order, a 
notice will be served on the owner prohibiting him from using the vehicle until the defect 
has been remedied.

The interior and exterior of the vehicle shall be maintained in a clean and proper manner 
to the reasonable satisfaction of the Licensing Authority and without prejudice to the 
foregoing in particular the exterior of the vehicle shall be free of large dents, rust or 
unrepaired accident damage and shall at all times have uniform paintwork equivalent to 
that applied by the manufacture.  The interior shall be free of all stains, splits, tears to 
the same and the seats shall be required to function in accordance with the original 
manufacturer’s specification.



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

22

13.10 Advertising

The Licensing Authority will allow advertisements to be placed upon a vehicle subject to 
the following conditions:

A proprietor may have simple lettering and numbers on a vehicle in order to display a 
company name, address, telephone/fax number, email address or website or advisory 
notices to do with smoking.  These may appear on the side, rear or bonnet.  No 
advertising should obscure the view of the windows.  

No graphics, artworks, slogans, advertisements or other displays of any kind are 
permitted except with the consent of the Licensing Authority.

In the case of private hire vehicles, advertising is subject to the specific exclusion of the 
words “TAXI”, “CAB” or “HIRE” the use of which is not permitted.  Advertising on private 
hire vehicles must contain the words “pre-booked only”.

13.11 Safety Equipment

All licensed vehicles must carry the following safety equipment, marked with the licence 
number of the vehicle:

First Aid Kit

A first aid kit must be carried within the interior of the vehicle and readily available to 
passengers on request.  The identification number of the vehicle must be painted on the 
body of the kit.  The contents of the first aid kit must be compliant with British Standard 
BS 8599-2 and hold suitable content for the number of passengers.

The first-aid kit must be maintained in full and proper order with items replaced before 
expiry.

Fire Extinguisher

A minimum 1Kg powder type fire extinguisher with gauge or a 1 litre AFFF with gauge, 
or any other form of fire extinguisher required in writing by an Authorised Officer of the 
Licensing Authority.  It must conform to a recognised standard such as European 
Standard EN3 or British Standard 5423 and be carried in the vehicle at all times.  
It must be readily accessible and maintained in good working order. The licence plate 
number of the vehicle must be painted along the body of the extinguisher.

13.12 Taximeters

All Hackney Carriages must be fitted with a calendar controlled taxi meter set to the 
Licensing Authority’s Table of Fares.



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

23

All taximeters must comply with the Measuring Instruments (Taximeters) Regulations 
2006 and will be the subject to examination during mechanical tests.

13.13 Special Event, Vintage, Classic or Niche Vehicles and Stretched Limousines

The above type of vehicle will be licensed at the discretion of the Licensing Authority 
and will be subject to the same requirements under section 13 of this Policy in terms of 
passenger comfort, safety, mechanical examination and maintenance.

Imported vehicles must be tested by the Driver and Vehicle Standards Agency under the 
Individual Vehicle Approval (IVA) scheme before being presented for licensing.

The above vehicles will only be licensed for 8 passengers and operators may be 
required to sign a declaration agreeing to this limit.

No intoxicating liquor shall be provided in the vehicle, unless there is the correct licence 
in place.

13.14 Exemption Policy for Private Hire Vehicles

The Licensing Authority recognises operators may wish to cater for an ‘exclusive’ or 
corporate client base and provide a vehicle of a prestige model and specification.  An 
operator may apply for an exemption to the requirement to display a licence plate for the 
following approved work only:

 Corporate bookings to transport employees and clients on corporate business 
journeys and/or

 Airport and other ‘special’ journeys where the client specifically requests a vehicle 
of a prestige specification at the time of booking and pays a recognisably higher 
fee for that service compared to that charged for a non exempt vehicle displaying 
corporate identity.

The approval of an exemption will be based on the cost, reputation, specification, 
appearance, perception and superior comfort levels of a vehicle and the fact that it will 
not resemble a non-exempt private hire vehicle licensed to undertake the ‘normal’ day to 
day role.  Each application will be considered on its individual merits.

 Saloon, hatchback and estate vehicles to be licensed for 4 passengers only plus 
the driver allowing sufficient space for adult passengers to travel comfortably.

 Engine size indicatively 2000cc or greater.

 A range of vehicles capable of carrying in excess of 4 passengers will be 
considered provided they meet the higher specification and original list price 
required.



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

24

 Vehicles seating more than 4 passengers will be licensed only for sufficient 
numbers of passengers to travel comfortably. Each seat must be adequate 
dimensions and must permit direct access into and out of the side doors of the 
vehicle without the need to move, remove or fold down any seat.  No vehicle 
modifications from the manufacturer’s specification are accepted.

 The original list price of any vehicle must be a minimum of £30,000 in spite its 
age on application.  This minimum price will be exclusive of any extras added at 
the time of purchase.  Evidence of the original new list value will be obtained at 
the time of application.  The Licensing Authority must be satisfied the evidence 
provided verifies the original list value.

 The vehicle must have a minimum specification of at least air condition/climate 
control to front and rear seats, all electric windows, central locking and front and 
rear headrests sufficient for each passenger.

 Vehicles must be under five years of age at first licence.  

14.  REQUIREMENTS FOR OPERATORS

14.1 Where the Licensing Authority issues a Licence to Private Hire Operators it will be 
for a maximum of 60 calendar months from the date of issue.

14.2 The Operators base shall be located within the District of the Licensing Authority.

14.3 Under section 55 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 the 
Licensing Authority must not grant a licence for an Operator of a Private Hire Vehicle 
unless satisfied that the applicant is a fit and proper person to hold an Operator’s 
licence:

14.4 To establish a fit and proper person an applicant will need to provide the following:

 Completed Application Form and Fee

14.5 If not already licensed with the Licensing Authority as a driver an applicant must 
provide:

 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Form together with supporting documents 
and fee.

 If not a UK national, a Certificate of Good Conduct/Character/Citizenship from the 
Ministry of Justice for the country of origin or UK Embassy

 If having lived abroad for more than a month since the age of 10 years old, a 
Certificate of Good Conduct/Character/Citizenship from the Ministry of Justice for 
that particular country/countries.



East Hampshire District Council
Policy Statement – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing

25

 Proof of eligibility to live and work in the UK (this will be requested where 
applicable e.g. overseas students undertaking a course in the UK or applicants 
who may be applying before moving to the UK).





Dual Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Driver’s Conditions

These conditions are made under section 51 Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 by East Hampshire District Council in respect of Private Hire 
Vehicle Drivers.

1. Interpretation

In these conditions:- “The Act” means Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1976; “the council” means East Hampshire District Council; “licensed 
driver/driver” means a person licensed to drive a private hire vehicle under Section 
51 of the Act; “authorised officer” means any officer of the council authorised in 
writing by the council for the purpose of these conditions; “driver’s badge” means, in 
relation to the driver of a private hire vehicle, a badge issued by the council under 
section 54 of the Act; “hackney carriage” has the meaning as defined in the Town 
Police Clauses Act 1847 ; “Byelaws” mean those in respect of Hackney Carriages 
made by East Hampshire District Council under section 68 of the Town Police 
Clauses Act 1847

The licence holder must make himself familiar with the conditions and apply them at 
all times and upon request make them known to any hirer.  A hackney carriage driver 
must also make himself familiar with the Byelaws, apply them at all times when 
driving a hackney carriage and upon request make them known to any hirer. 

2. Conditions relating to driver’s badge
The driver’s badge must be worn in such a position that it be clearly seen all the time 
the licence holder is working.

The driver’s badge shall remain the property of the council and if the driver’s licence 
is not renewed, or is otherwise revoked or suspended such badge shall be returned 
by the licence holder together with the licence to the council within seven days of a 
written notice or upon the demand of an authorised officer.  in the event of loss or 
damage to this badge, which renders it unserviceable, the licence holder shall make 
application to the council for a replacement badge to be issued for which a fee is 
payable. 

3. Conditions relating to conduct of licensed drivers
A licensed driver:
(a) must at no time cause or permit the noise emitted by any radio or in car 

entertainment in the vehicle to be a source of nuisance or annoyance to any 
person, whether they are inside or outside the vehicle.



(b) shall fully acquaint himself with the topography of the district and, if requested to 
do so, satisfy the council as to his knowledge of the district.  

(c) shall when hired to drive to any destination, subject to any direction given by the 
hirer, proceed to that destination by the shortest available route, and shall not, 
without reasonable cause, prolong in distance or time any journey for which the 
vehicle is hired.

(d) shall when hired or agreed to be in attendance with his vehicle at an appointed 
time and place, attend punctually with such vehicle unless delayed or prevented 
by some sufficient cause beyond his control.

(e) provide a prompt, efficient, courteous and reliable service at all times. 
(f) be clean and respectable in his dress and person, following any dress code 

required by the council 
(g) behave in a civil, courteous and orderly manner at all times, following any code of 

conduct or policy the council may have in force at any time they are licensed with 
the authority.

(h) shall take all reasonable steps to ensure the safety of passengers conveyed in, 
entering or alighting from the vehicle driven by him and offer passengers such 
assistance as may be required.

(i) shall not smoke or use a similar electronic or vaporising device in their vehicle at 
any time.

(j) shall not convey in the vehicle a greater number of persons then the number of 
persons specified on the plate attached to the vehicle.

(k) shall immediately after the end of any hiring of a licensed vehicle, or as soon as 
practicable thereafter, carefully search the vehicle for any property which may 
have been accidentally left there; and if any property is found or is given to the 
licence holder, having been left in the private hire vehicle, the licence holder shall 
take it to a police station as soon as reasonably practicable or, in any case, within 
24 hours.

(l) if requested by the hirer of a private hire vehicle, provide him with a written receipt 
for the fare paid.

(m)if, at any time during the life of the licence, becomes aware of any medical 
condition which may affect his fitness to drive licensed vehicles he shall 
immediately give notice in writing to the council and shall, if required, submit to an 
examination by a registered medical practitioner of the council’s choice to 
ascertain his fitness to be licensed.

(n) shall within seven days inform the council in writing details of any motoring or 
criminal convictions or cautions imposed on him (or if the licence holder is a 
company or partnership, on any of the directors or partners).

(o) shall within seven days inform the council in writing details of any change of 
address.



Restricted Private Hire Vehicle Driver’s Conditions

These conditions are made under section 51 Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 by East Hampshire District Council in respect of Private Hire 
Vehicle Drivers.

1. Interpretation

In these conditions:- “The Act” means Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1976; “the council” means East Hampshire District Council; “restricted private 
hire driver’s licence” means a person licensed to drive a private hire vehicle under 
Section 51 of the Act which carries out a Local Authority contract (e.g. school or 
social care) where the same regular journey is undertaken; “authorised officer” 
means any officer of the council authorised in writing by the council for the purpose of 
these conditions; “driver’s badge” means, in relation to the driver of a private hire 
vehicle, a badge issued by the council under section 54 of the Act.

The licence holder must make himself familiar with the conditions and apply them at 
all times and upon request make them known to any hirer.  

2. Conditions relating to driver’s badge
The driver’s badge must be worn in such a position that it be clearly seen all the time 
the licence holder is working.

The driver’s badge shall remain the property of the council and if the driver’s licence 
is not renewed, or is otherwise revoked or suspended such badge shall be returned 
by the licence holder together with the licence to the council within seven days of a 
written notice or upon the demand of an authorised officer.  in the event of loss or 
damage to this badge, which renders it unserviceable, the licence holder shall make 
application to the council for a replacement badge to be issued for which a fee is 
payable. 

3. Conditions relating to the limitations of the Restricted Private Hire Driver’s Licence
A restricted private hire driver’s licence may only be issued for the purpose of 
carrying out the following journeys in a private hire vehicle, not carrying a taximeter: 
 Local Authority contracts (e.g. school or social care) where the same regular 

journey is undertaken. 
 Where the vehicle is not operated from a taxi or private hire circuit. 

4. Conditions relating to conduct of licensed drivers
A licensed driver:



(a) must at no time cause or permit the noise emitted by any radio or in car 
entertainment in the vehicle to be a source of nuisance or annoyance to any 
person, whether they are inside or outside the vehicle.

(b) shall fully acquaint himself with the topography of the district and, if requested to 
do so, satisfy the council as to his knowledge of the district.  

(c) shall when hired to drive to any destination, subject to any direction given by the 
hirer, proceed to that destination by the shortest available route, and shall not, 
without reasonable cause, prolong in distance or time any journey for which the 
vehicle is hired.

(d) shall when hired or agreed to be in attendance with his vehicle at an appointed 
time and place, attend punctually with such vehicle unless delayed or prevented 
by some sufficient cause beyond his control.

(e) provide a prompt, efficient, courteous and reliable service at all times. 
(f) be clean and respectable in his dress and person, following any dress code 

required by the council 
(g) behave in a civil, courteous and orderly manner at all times, following any code of 

conduct or dress code required by the council
(h) shall take all reasonable steps to ensure the safety of passengers conveyed in, 

entering or alighting from the vehicle driven by him and offer passengers such 
assistance as may be required.

(i) shall comply with any code of conduct or policy the council may have in force at 
any time they are licensed with the authority.

(j) shall not smoke or use a similar electronic or vaporising device in their vehicle at 
any time.

(k) shall not convey in the vehicle a greater number of persons then the number of 
persons specified on the plate attached to the vehicle.

(l) shall immediately after the end of any hiring of a licensed vehicle, or as soon as 
practicable thereafter, carefully search the vehicle for any property which may 
have been accidentally left there; and if any property is found or is given to the 
licence holder, having been left in the private hire vehicle, the licence holder shall 
take it to a police station as soon as reasonably practicable or, in any case, within 
24 hours.

(m)if requested by the hirer of a private hire vehicle, provide him with a written receipt 
for the fare paid.

(n) if, at any time during the life of the licence, becomes aware of any medical 
condition which may affect his fitness to drive licensed vehicles he shall 
immediately give notice in writing to the council and shall, if required, submit to an 
examination by a registered medical practitioner of the council’s choice to 
ascertain his fitness to be licensed.

(o) shall within seven days inform the council in writing details of any motoring or 
criminal convictions or cautions imposed on him (or if the licence holder is a 
company or partnership, on any of the directors or partners).

(p) shall within seven days inform the council in writing details of any change of 
address.



Hackney Carriage (Taxi) Conditions

These conditions are made under Section 47(1) of Part II of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, by East Hampshire District Council in respect 
of hackney carriage vehicles for hire in the Council area of East Hampshire. They are 
in addition to the Hackney Carriage Byelaws.

1. Interpretation

In these conditions:- “The Act” means Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1976; “the council” means East Hampshire District Council; “hackney carriage” 
has the same meaning as in the Town Police Clauses Act 1847; “proprietor” means 
owner of hackney carriage and includes part owner; “the vehicle” means the hackney 
carriage; “authorised officer” means any officer of the council authorised in writing by 
the council for the purpose of these conditions; “Byelaws” mean those in respect of 
Hackney Carriages made by East Hampshire District Council under section 68 of the 
Town Police Clauses Act 1847.

The licence holder must make himself familiar with the conditions and apply them at 
all times and upon request make them known to any hirer.  

2. Conditions relating to specification of Hackney Carriage Vehicles:
(a) The vehicle must at all times comply with the council’s specification currently in 

force.
(b) No material alteration or change in the specification, design, condition, 

mechanical operation or appearance of the vehicle shall be made without the 
approval of the Council at any time while the licence is in force.

(c) No advertising is permitted in or on the vehicle without the written authority of the 
council, unless it complies with the advertising as detailed in the Council’s Policy.

(d) The vehicle must be fitted with a calendar controlled taximeter approved by the 
Council, and that meter shall be maintained in a sound mechanical condition at all 
times.  The taximeter shall be set for the current tariff agreed by the Council.  

(e) The vehicle must carry a roof sign, capable of illumination, which must conform to 
a specification approved and adopted by the Council (unless the vehicle is of the 
purpose built type).  The roof sign shall be illuminated when the vehicle is plying 
for hire.

3. Provisions regulating how Hackney Carriage Vehicles are to be furnished, 
provided and maintained.
The proprietor shall:
(a) keep the interior and exterior vehicle in a clean and tidy condition at all times. 



(b) ensure the vehicle is serviced and maintained in accordance with the 
manufacturers instructions.

(c) present the vehicle for mechanical examination to the satisfaction of the council.
(d) provide a minimum 1 kilo powder type fire extinguisher with gauge or a 1 litre 

AFFF with gauge, or any other form of fire extinguisher required in writing by an 
Authorised Officer of the Council.  It must conform to a recognised standard such 
as European Standard EN3 or British Standard 5423 and be carried in the vehicle 
at all times.  It must be readily accessible and maintained in good working order. 
The licence plate number of the vehicle must be painted along the body of the 
extinguisher. 

(e) provide a first aid kit must be carried within the interior of the vehicle and readily 
available to passengers on request.  The licence plate number of the vehicle must 
be painted on the body of the kit.  The first aid kit must contain comply with the 
British Standard BS 8599-2 and hold suitable content for the number of 
passengers.  The first-aid kit must be maintained in full and proper order with 
items replaced before expiry.

(f) provide a no-smoking sign (international no-smoking symbol; no smaller than 
70mm in diameter) must be displayed inside the vehicle.

(g) provide sufficient means by which any person in the vehicle may communicate 
with the driver.

(h) ensure the vehicle is equipped with an indexed street map of the licence area, 
marked with the vehicle’s registration number and licence identification number.

(i) clearly display a tariff card, where it can be seen by any passenger, giving the 
tariff, not exceeding the charges permitted by the Council in its table of fares, 
applied by the proprietor through whom the vehicle is operated.  

4. Conditions regulating the provision and display of Hackney Carriage 
Identification Plate
(a) The identification plate to be provided by the Council bearing the number of the 

licence granted in respect of the vehicle shall be securely, permanently fixed, to 
the satisfaction of the Council, to the rear of the vehicle in such position that it 
shall be clearly visible from the rear of the vehicle, and shall not be wilfully or 
negligently concealed from public view while the vehicle is being used.  

(b) The plate remains the property of the Council. The plate must remain attached to 
the vehicle at all times whilst the vehicle is licensed.  In the event of loss or 
damage rendering such plate unserviceable the proprietor shall make immediate 
application for a replacement for which a fee is payable.

(c) Two additional identification notices provided by the Council must be displayed - 
in the front screen of the vehicle above the tax disc and on the nearside rear 
passenger window or such other position approved in writing by an authorised 
officer.   The notices are to be enclosed in the holder provided by the Council or 
other fixing as approved in writing by an authorised officer. 

(d) Where a the proprietor sells a licensed vehicle to another party, the proprietor 
shall submit, in writing, details of the new owner and will surrender the private hire 
vehicle licence plate to the Council within 48 hours.

(e) No vehicle will be granted a licence if it is licensed in another district.

The licence holder shall:

(f) notify the Council in writing within seven days any change of address.



(g) produce for the council within seven days of any change of insurer a copy of the 
relevant insurance cover note or certificate.

(h) within seven days inform the council in writing details of any motoring or criminal 
convictions or cautions imposed on him (or if the licence holder is a company or 
partnership, on any of the directors or partners).

(i) notify the council in writing of the names, addresses and licence numbers of 
drivers of his vehicle.

5. Conditions regulating the conduct of the proprietors of Hackney Carriages 
The proprietor of a Hackney Carriage shall:
(a) behave in a civil and orderly manner and shall take all reasonable precautions to 

ensure the safety of persons conveyed in or entering or alighting from the vehicle
(b) who has agreed to provide a driver and a vehicle at an appointed time and place, 

shall, unless delayed or prevented by some sufficient cause, provide punctually 
such driver and vehicle at such appointed time and place:

(c) not convey or permit to be conveyed in such vehicle any greater number of 
persons than the number of persons specified on the plate attached to the outside 
of the vehicle.

(d) display any printed or other matter by way of advertisement either inside or 
outside the vehicle except with the consent of the Council.

(e) Every pre-booked contract for the hire of a Hackney Carriage licensed by the 
Council shall be deemed to be made with the proprietor who accepted the 
booking for that vehicle whether or not he himself provided the vehicle.

(f) Where a pre-booked journey is subcontracted, the proprietor originally receiving 
the booking must inform the customer with whom the contract is made of the 
name of the proprietor to whom the booking has been sub-contracted.





1

Private Hire Vehicle Conditions

These conditions are made under Section 48 (2) of Part II of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, by East Hampshire District Council in respect 
of private hire vehicles for hire in the Council area of East Hampshire.

1. Interpretation

In these conditions:- “The Act” means Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1976; “the council” means East Hampshire District Council; “operator” means the 
business making provision for the invitation or acceptance of bookings for private hire 
vehicles; “private hire vehicle” means a motor vehicle constructed or adapted to seat 
fewer than nine passengers, other than a hackney carriage or public service vehicle, 
which is provided for hire with the services of a driver for the purpose of carrying 
passengers; “authorised officer” means any officer of the council authorised in writing 
by the council for the purpose of these conditions; “

The licence holder must make himself familiar with the conditions and apply them at 
all times and upon request make them known to any hirer.  

2. Conditions relating to specification of Private Hire Vehicles:
(a) The vehicle must at all times comply with the council’s specification currently in 

force.
(b) No material alteration or change in the specification, design, condition, 

mechanical operation or appearance of the vehicle shall be made without the 
approval of the Council at any time while the licence is in force.

(c) No advertising is permitted in or on the vehicle without the written authority of the 
council, unless it complies with the advertising as detailed in the Council’s Policy.

(d) No roof signs are permitted.

3. Provisions regulating how Private Hire Vehicles are to be furnished, 
provided and maintained.
The licence holder shall:
(a) keep the interior and exterior vehicle in a clean and tidy condition at all times. 
(b) ensure the vehicle is serviced and maintained in accordance with the 

manufacturers instructions.
(c) present the vehicle for mechanical examination to the satisfaction of the council.
(d) provide a minimum 1 kilo powder type fire extinguisher with gauge or a 1 litre 

AFFF with gauge, or any other form of fire extinguisher required in writing by an 
Authorised Officer of the Council.  It must conform to a recognised standard such 
as European Standard EN3 or British Standard 5423 and be carried in the vehicle 
at all times.  It must be readily accessible and maintained in good working order. 



2

The licence plate number of the vehicle must be painted along the body of the 
extinguisher. 

(e) provide a first aid kit must be carried within the interior of the vehicle and readily 
available to passengers on request.  The licence plate number of the vehicle must 
be painted on the body of the kit.  The first aid kit must contain comply with the 
British Standard BS 8599-2 and hold suitable content for the number of 
passengers.  The first-aid kit must be maintained in full and proper order with 
items replaced before expiry.

(f) provide a no-smoking sign (international no-smoking symbol; no smaller than 
70mm in diameter) must be displayed inside the vehicle.

(g) provide sufficient means by which any person in the vehicle may communicate 
with the driver.

4. Conditions regulating the provision and display of Private Hire Vehicle 
Identification Plate
(a) The identification plate to be provided by the Council pursuant to Section 48(5) 

bearing the number of the licence granted in respect of the vehicle shall be 
securely, permanently fixed, to the satisfaction of the Council, to the outside of the 
off-side rear of the vehicle in such position that it shall be clearly visible from the 
rear of the vehicle and shall be not less than 300 mm nor more than 766 mm to 
the bottom edge of the plate from the ground when the vehicle is fully laden, and 
shall not be wilfully or negligently concealed from public view while the vehicle is 
being used.  

(b) The plate remains the property of the Council. The plate must remain attached to 
the vehicle at all times whilst the vehicle is licensed.  In the event of loss or 
damage rendering such plate unserviceable the proprietor shall make immediate 
application for a replacement for which a fee is payable.

(c) Two additional identification notices provided by the Council must be displayed - 
in the front screen of the vehicle above the tax disc and on the nearside rear 
passenger window or such other position approved in writing by an authorised 
officer.   The notices are to be enclosed in the holder provided by the Council or 
other fixing as approved in writing by an authorised officer. 

(d) Where a the proprietor sells a licensed vehicle to another party, the proprietor 
shall submit, in writing, details of the new owner and will surrender the private hire 
vehicle licence plate to the Council within 48 hours.

(e) No vehicle will be granted a licence if it is licensed in another district.

The licence holder shall:

(f) notify the Council in writing within seven days any change of address.
(g) produce for the council within seven days of any change of insurer a copy of the 

relevant insurance cover note or certificate.
(h) within seven days inform the council in writing details of any motoring or criminal 

convictions or cautions imposed on him (or if the licence holder is a company or 
partnership, on any of the directors or partners).

(i) deposit his licence or copy with the operator with whom he works.
(j) notify the council in writing of the names, addresses and licence numbers of 

drivers of his vehicle.

5. Conditions regulating the conduct of the proprietors of Private Hire Vehicles



3

The proprietor of a Private Hire Vehicle shall:
(a) not by calling out or otherwise importune any person to hire such vehicle and 

shall not make use of the services of any other person for the purpose:
(b) behave in a civil and orderly manner and shall take all reasonable precautions to 

ensure the safety of persons conveyed in or entering or alighting from the vehicle:
(c) who has agreed to provide a driver and a vehicle at an appointed time and place, 

shall, unless delayed or prevented by some sufficient cause, provide punctually 
such driver and vehicle at such appointed time and place:

(d) not convey or permit to be conveyed in such vehicle any greater number of 
persons than the number of persons specified on the plate attached to the outside 
of the vehicle.

(e) not display on any Private Hire Vehicle licensed by the Council any sign or notice 
which consists of or includes the word “taxi” or “cab” whether in the singular or 
plural and whether alone or as part of another word or which consists of the 
words “for hire” or the form or wording of which is in any other  way such as to  
suggest that the vehicle on which it is displayed is presently available to take up 
any passengers wishing to hire it or would be so available if not already hired

(f) display any printed or other matter by way of advertisement either inside or 
outside the vehicle except with the consent of the Council.

6. Condition securing the safe custody and re-delivery of any property 
accidentally left in Private Hire Vehicles
(a) The proprietor or driver of a Private Hire Vehicle shall, if any property accidentally 

left therein by any person who may have been conveyed in the vehicle be found 
by or handed to him, carry it within twenty-four hours, if not sooner claimed by or 
on behalf of its owner, to the nearest Police Station, and leave it in the custody of 
the officer in charge of such Police.





Private Hire Vehicle Operator’s Conditions

These conditions are made under section 55(3) Part II of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, by East Hampshire District Council with respect to 
persons licensed to operate Private Hire Vehicles in the Council area.

1. Interpretation

In these conditions:- “The Act” means Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976; “the council” means East Hampshire District Council; “operator” means the 
business making provision for the invitation or acceptance of bookings for private hire 
vehicles; “operators licence” means a licence under Section 55 of the Act; “private hire 
vehicle” means a motor vehicle constructed or adapted to seat fewer than nine 
passengers, other than a hackney carriage or public service vehicle, which is provided 
for hire with the services of a driver for the purpose of carrying passengers; “authorised 
officer” means any officer of the council authorised in writing by the council for the 
purpose of these conditions.  

Throughout these conditions, the term ”licence holder” means the operator.

The licence holder must make himself familiar with the conditions and apply them at all 
times and upon request make them known to any hirer.  

2. Conditions relating to Operators
(a) The licence holder shall notify the council in writing of the name(s) under which he 

intends to trade before he commences to do so. He may not use any name already 
in use within the council area, or a name that so closely resembles a name already in 
use that it is deemed by the council likely to confuse customers.

(b) The Operators base shall be located within the District of the Licensing Authority.
(c) The operator shall provide a prompt, efficient, courteous and reliable service to 

members of the public and ensure that those who work for or with him do the same.
(d) The operator will notify the council of any change of name of the business 

immediately.
(e) An Operator shall inform the council of any proposed change of address prior to any 

move, as this licence is specific to the address shown on it, and Operators should be 
aware that planning permission is usually required for the operation of a private hire 
business where the number of vehicles to be operated exceeds one.  

3. Conditions relating to Vehicles and Drivers
The operator shall:



(a) not employ any vehicle or driver in the course of a Private Hire Business unless that 
vehicle or driver is licensed for that purpose for use in the Council’s District.  Copies 
of the private hire driver and vehicle licences for all drivers and vehicles used must 
be held by the operator.

(b) take all reasonable steps to ensure that the council’s conditions in respect of 
operators’, vehicles’ and drivers’ licences under his control are properly observed.

(c) notify the council in writing within 7 days when a driver or vehicle starts or finishes 
working for him.

(d) keep a copy of the current insurance certificate/cover note in respect of each private 
hire vehicle which is available to him for carrying out bookings accepted by him.

(e) upon the issue or renewal of the operator’s licence, provide to the Council a record of 
all drivers and vehicles which he operates.

(f) not allow a greater number of Private Hire Vehicles to operate from his premises 
than the number for which planning permission has been granted by the Council.

4.  Booking Records
(a) An operator shall maintain at the premises for which they a licensed, a record book 

or auditable computer record in a form satisfactory to the Council and enter therein 
before the commencement of each journey the following particulars of each booking 
of a private hire vehicle invited or accepted by him whether by accepting the same 
from the hirer or by undertaking it at the request of another Operator and shall 
produce such records for inspection on request to any authorised officer of the 
Council or any Police Officer.

(b) Particulars to be recorded:
i. Date, time and place for the commencement of the booked journey;
ii. The name of the person to be conveyed;
iii. The destination;
iv. The fare quoted for the journey;
v. The licensed vehicle and driver undertaking the booked journey;
vi. The name of the person taking the booking;
vii. The time and date of the booking taken;
viii. Any other information required by the Operator.

(c) An Operator shall maintain a record book in a form satisfactory to the Council in 
which shall be entered the following particulars for each driver working under the 
auspices of the Operator, prior to the commencement of any work period for that 
driver:

i. The start and finish times of the shift;
ii. The name of the driver;
iii. The licence number of the private hire vehicle to be driven;
iv. The code name of that vehicle/driver combination.

(d) An Operator shall keep the above records for a minimum of 5 years.

5.  Sub-contracting
(a) Every contract for the hire of a Private Hire Vehicle licensed by the Council shall be 

deemed to be made with the operator who accepted the booking for that vehicle 
whether or not he himself provided the vehicle.



(b) Where a booking is legally capable of being subcontracted to or from another licence 
holder, in addition to the above details, the record must show the name and council 
district of the other operator.

(c) Where a booking is subcontracted, the operator originally receiving the booking must 
inform the customer with whom the contract is made of the name of the operator to 
whom the booking has been sub-contracted.

6. Advertisement:
(a) All signs or advertisements, in whatever form and wherever so displayed, shall not 

consist of or include the words “taxi” or “cab”, whether in the singular or plural 
whether alone or as part of another word or any word of similar meaning or 
appearance.

7. Conditions relating to Operator’s Premises
(a) A licence holder must hold a licence in respect of each address from which he 

operates.
(b) Any public reception area provided must be kept in a clean and tidy condition at all 

times with adequate seating.
(c) No person who is behaving in a disorderly manner shall be permitted to remain on 

the premises.
(d) ‘No-smoking’ signs must be displayed in a prominent position at every entrance to 

the premises.  Signs must meet the minimum statutory requirements.





                                                    

1

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PENALTY POINTS
SCHEME

For Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle 
Drivers,

Vehicle Owners and Proprietors 

August 2015



                                                    

2

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL - Penalty Points Scheme 

Introduction

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Operators, Drivers and Vehicles are principally 
governed by the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Town Police 
Clauses Act 1847, Conditions and the Council’s Byelaws.

Should Operators, Drivers or Proprietors of Vehicles commit an offence or breach those 
rules, regulations or conditions of licence, persons involved are asked to attend the offices 
for an interview and then once investigations are completed, letters are sent out detailing 
the outcome and a permanent record kept on the person’s file. The outcome of 
investigations may result in no further action being taken, penalty points being awarded, a 
formal warning, referral to the Licensing Sub-Committee and/or prosecution.

The primary objective of the penalty points scheme is to improve the levels of compliance 
and help improve the standards, safety and protection of the travelling public.

Penalty Points will record misdemeanours and to act as a record of licence holder’s 
behaviour and conduct so as to ascertain whether they are a fit and proper person.  

The Penalty Points Scheme does not prejudice the Council’s ability to take other actions.  
In all cases a record will remain against the driver’s record, regardless of whether Points 
have been issued or have become spent.

Penalty points remain for three years.  The period is on a roll forward basis, so as to allow 
any older points to be considered as spent and therefore excluded from the running total 
recorded against any individual licensee.

In the event that a driver/owner/operator commits an offence or breaches a condition as 
listed in the penalty points table attached he/she shall be awarded the number of points 
applicable to the circumstances as shown in the table for the breach/offence shown in the 
table.

Complaints concerning significant breaches of conduct will be subject to investigation by 
Officers and may be reported to the Licensing Sub-Committee for the issue of discretionary 
points.

Where a licence holder accumulates more than 12 penalty points in any 36 month period, 
the matter will be referred to the Council’s Licensing Sub-Committee to decide whether the 
licence holder is a fit and proper person.  The Licensing-Sub Committee may then suspend 
or revoke a licence, or issue a warning to the licence holder, depending on the 
circumstances.  Periods of suspension of a licence by a Sub-Committee will be dependant 
on the nature of the breaches of the legislation/conditions and the compliance history of the 
individual.  Suspension periods will normally vary between 7 to 31 days.

Penalty Points will remain current for 36 months from the date the penalty points were 
issued.  Points issued to either the proprietor of a vehicle or a driver will be confirmed in 
writing within 10 working days from the discovery of the contravention.

Any disputes regarding the issuing of penalty points will be referred to the Licensing Sub-
Committee who will have the discretion to award a greater number of points than displayed 
on the tariff, if the complaint is upheld.  



                                                    

3

The system will operate without prejudice to the Council’s ability to take other action that it 
is entitled to take under legislation, byelaws and regulations.   The Council may also issue 
written warnings or suspend, revoke or not renew licences without having issued penalty 
points in the first instance.  In all cases actions will be in line with the Councils Enforcement 
Policy with the overarching aim of protecting public safety.

PENALTY POINTS TABLE

Offence/Breach of Condition
Maximum

Points
Applicable

Driver Vehicle 
Owner or 
Operator

1 Providing false or misleading information on 
licence application form/failing to provide 
relevant information or the relevant fee 
(including dishonoured cheques).

6 to 12  

2 Failure to notify, in writing, the Council of 
change of address within 7 days. 3  

3 Refusal to accept hiring without reasonable 
cause. 6 to 12 

4 Unreasonable prolongation of journeys or 
any misconduct regarding the charging of 
fares.

6 to 12 

5 Plying for hire by Private Hire drivers. 12  

6 Using unlicensed vehicle or vehicle without 
insurance. 12  

7 Allowing unlicensed driver to drive a licensed 
vehicle 12 

8 Failure to produce relevant documents within 
timescale when requested by an authorised 
officer.

6  

9 Unsatisfactory condition of vehicle, interior or 
exterior. 4  

10 Failure to produce MOT certificate when 
requested. 6  

11 Failure to produce Hackney Carriage or 
Private Hire vehicle for testing when required 6  

12 Failure to provide proof of insurance cover 
when requested. 6 

13 Using a vehicle subject to a suspension order 
issued by an authorised officer or a police 
officer.

12  

14 Using a vehicle for which the licence has 
been suspended or revoked. 12  

15 Failure to report, in writing, within 72 hours 
accident or damage to licensed vehicle, 
which would cause the vehicle to breach 
licence conditions.

4  

16 Carrying more passengers than stated on the 
vehicle licence. 9 



                                                    

4

17 Failure to display external/internal licence 
plate or signs as required. 4 

18
Carrying an offensive weapon in the vehicle.

12 

19 Charging or obtaining more than the legal 
fare.  (Hackney Carriage) 6 to 12  

20 Charging or obtaining more than the agreed 
fare.  (Private Hire) 6 to 12  

21 Failure to notify transfer of Private Hire or 
Hackney Carriage vehicle licence. 4 

22 Failure to carry fire extinguisher. 4 

23 Failure to carry first aid kit. 4 

24 Displaying unsuitable or inappropriate sited 
signs or advertisements in the vehicle. 6 

25 Displaying advertisement without the written 
agreement of the Council 6 

26 Failure to use authorised roof light 4 

27 Failure to maintain records in a suitable form 
of the commencement and cessation of work 
of each driver each day.

4 

28 Failure to produce on request records of 
drivers work activity. 4 

29 Using a non approved or non-calibrated 
taximeter. 6  

30 Interfering with a taxi-meter. 6 to 12  

31 Obstruction of an authorised officer or police 
officer in the course of their duties. 12  

32 Evidence of smoking or use of electronic 
cigarette or other vaporising device in 
vehicle.

4  

33 Evidence of food or drink in vehicle available 
for hire. 3  

34 Evidence of alcohol or illegal drugs in vehicle 12  

35 Displaying any feature on private hire vehicle 
that may suggest that it is a taxi. 6 

36 Using a private hire vehicle with the 
appearance of which suggests that it is a taxi. 6 

37 Failure to carry an assistance dog without 
requisite exemption. 12  

38 Driver not holding a current DVLA Licence. 12  

39 Failure to wear driver’s badge. 4 



                                                    

5

40 Failure to notify, in writing, a change in 
medical circumstances. 6  

41 Unsatisfactory appearance of driver. 3 to 12 

42 Failure to observe rank discipline.  3 to 12 

43 Failure to maintain proper records of private 
hire vehicle. 6 

44 Failure to keep or produce records of Private 
Hire bookings or other documents required to 
be kept or produced.

6 

45 Misleading use of the words ‘Taxi’ or ‘Cab’ on 
advertising materials. 3 

46 Failure to issue receipt on request. 1 to 12  

47 Failure to return licence within 7 days after 
due notice following revocation or suspension 
of such licence.

6 to 12  

48 Unsatisfactory behaviour or conduct of driver. 4 to 12  

49 Failure to notify the Council, in writing, of any 
motoring or criminal convictions within 7 days 
of conviction or cautions.

6 to 12  

50 Failure to behave in a civil and orderly 
manner. 1 to 12  

51 Failure to give assistance with 
loading/unloading. 1 to 12  

52 Failure to display fare card. 3  

53 Failure to carry approved spare wheel and 
tools. 4  

54 Failure to attend punctually at appointed time 
and place without sufficient cause. 4  

55 A licensed vehicle with a bald tyre. 4 per tyre  

56 Failure to submit licence renewal application 
including documents and attendance at a 
vehicle inspection.

6  

57 Failure to comply with any other conditions 3 to 12  

58 Waiting or stopping on a double yellow line 
area, bus stop or private land (without the 
owner’s permission) unless requested by a 
paying customer present in the vehicle.

3 

59 Use of hand held device (eg mobile phone) 
whilst driving licensed vehicle 6 

60 Leaving Hackney Carriage unattended on a 
rank. 3 

61 Smoking in a licensed vehicle, including the 
use of an electronic or vaporising device. 6 



                                                    

6

62 Points awarded by Licensing Sub-Committee 
where matters referred to them for decision. 1 to 12  



A

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

LICENSING ENFORCEMENT POLICY

May 2015



2

CONTENTS

Paragraph Title Page Number

1 Background 3

2 Responsibilities 4

3 Principles of Enforcement 4-6

4 Enforcement Criteria 6-7

5 Enforcement Options 7-8

6 Informal Action 8-9

7 Formal Cautions 9

8 Penalty Points 10

9 Prosecution 10-12

10 Other Actions 12

11 Dealing with Intelligence 12

12 Equal 
Opportunities 12

13 Review 12-13

14 Contact Points 13
 



3

BACKGROUND

Purpose of Licensing: 

1.1 Licensing is necessary to protect the public health and public safety of residents, 
visitors and the business community whilst encouraging fair trading and promoting 
the economy. In order to achieve this, legislation requires that licences, permits, 
consents and registrations be obtained.  These are subject to certain conditions.

Purpose of an Enforcement Policy 

1.2 The Licensing Team and Council recognise that most businesses and individuals 
want to comply with the law. Assistance and advice will be provided, wherever 
possible, to help businesses and individuals meet their legal obligations without 
unnecessary expense. However, it will take firm action against those who flout the 
law or act irresponsibly. 

1.3 The purpose of enforcement action is to: 

 Protect the public
 Punish offenders
 Change the behaviour of offenders
 Deter future non-compliance
 Provide a fair trading environment for compliant businesses

1.4 Enforcement policies set out what businesses and any other parties being 
regulated can expect from enforcement action and ensure all such action is 
proportionate and is conducted with openness, fairness and consistency.  

1.5 This policy directs that any kind of enforcement action will be primarily based 
upon an assessment of risk to public health.  Enforcement action will not, therefore, 
constitute a punitive response to minor technical contraventions of legislation.

1.6 The effectiveness of laws and licence conditions in protecting consumers or 
sectors in society depends crucially on persons complying with legislation.   
Additionally, section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places a duty on all local 
authorities and police authorities to consider crime and disorder reduction while 
exercising all their duties.  We also expect licence holders to comply with any 
reasonable request of authorised officers if requested to take a particular action in 
order to prevent and reduce crime and protect public safety.

1.8 East Hampshire District Council complies with the principles in the Regulators 
Compliance Code. This policy reflects the principles of that code.  



4

2.       RESPONSIBILITIES

2.1 East Hampshire District Council is responsible for the granting of licences, 
permits and consents, which are usually subject to certain conditions.

2.2 The Licensing Team Leader is responsible for the effective operation of this 
policy. 

2.3 The Council’s Licensing Committee have jurisdiction in certain matters within this 
policy. It is not necessary for Council Members to be involved in detailed 
consideration of individual cases (other than in very exceptional circumstances). The 
decision to refer a case for prosecution, based on the available evidence and 
professional judgement, shall be left to the Environmental Health Service Manager.

2.4 All prosecutions must be authorised by Environmental Health Service Manager. 
Prior to submitting a prosecution file to the Environmental Health Service Manager 
the case officer must first consult with the Licensing Team Leader to ensure that the 
prosecution is in accordance with this enforcement policy. The case officer must then 
consult with the Head of Legal Services to ensure that the case has been properly 
considered and is sound.

2. 5 All authorised officers shall abide by this policy when making enforcement 
decisions. Any departure from the policy will be exceptional, capable of justification 
and be fully considered by the Licensing Team Leader before the decision is taken. 
Any departures from this policy with reasons must be recorded.

2.6 All authorised officers should be fully acquainted with the requirements of this 
policy and any future amendments.

3.      PRINCIPLES OF ENFORCEMENT

3.1 Effective and well-targeted regulation is essential in promoting fairness and 
protecting the public from harm.

3.2 We will consider the impact that our regulatory interventions may have on 
economic progress, through consideration of the costs, effectiveness and 
perceptions of fairness of regulation. We will only adopt a particular approach if the 
benefits justify the costs.

3.3 We will ensure that the allocation of our regulatory efforts and resources will be 
targeted where they will be most effective by assessing the risks to their regulatory
outcomes. Risk assessment will precede and inform all aspects of our approaches to 
regulatory activity.

3.4 We will provide targeted and practical advice that meets the needs of regulated 
businesses. Such advice will be provided in a range of formats, such as face-to-face 
interactions, telephone helpline and online guidance. In determining the appropriate 
formats, we will seek to maximise the reach, accessibility and effectiveness of advice 
while ensuring efficient use of resources. 

3.5 We will ensure that inspections and other visits, such as compliance or advice 
visits, to regulated businesses only occur in accordance with a risk assessment 



5

methodology, except where visits are requested by regulated businesses, or where 
we act on relevant intelligence.

3.6 We will focus our greatest attention on regulated businesses where risk 
assessment shows that both a compliance breach or breaches would pose a serious 
risk to a regulatory outcome and there is high likelihood of non-compliance by 
regulated businesses.

3.7 Where two or more inspectors, whether from the same or different regulators,
undertake planned inspections of the same regulated business, we will have 
arrangements for collaboration to minimise burdens on the regulated business, for
example, through joint or co-ordinated inspections and data sharing.

3.8 We will seek to reward those regulated businesses that have consistently 
achieved good levels of compliance through positive incentives, such as light touch 
inspections and positive publicity.  We will also take account of the circumstances of 
small regulated businesses, including any difficulties they may have in achieving 
compliance.

3.9 We will ensure that our sanctions and penalties are consistent with the principles 
set out in the Government’s better regulation agenda.  This means that we will:

 aim to change the behaviour of the offender
 aim to eliminate any financial gain or benefit from non-compliance
 be responsive and consider what is appropriate for the particular offender and 

regulatory issue, which can include punishment and the public stigma that 
should be associated with a criminal conviction

 be proportionate to the nature of the offence and the harm caused
 aim to restore the harm caused by regulatory non-compliance, where 

appropriate and
 aim to deter future non-compliance.

3.10 We will ensure that clear reasons for any formal enforcement action are
given to the person or business against whom any enforcement action is being taken 
at the time the action is taken.  These reasons will be confirmed in writing at the 
earliest opportunity. Complaints and relevant appeals procedures for redress will be 
explained at the same time.

3.11 Our principles of enforcement will include the following: 

Openness: 

 We will be open about how work is done and the policies and procedures we 
follow.

 All enforcement decisions or departure from this policy will be recorded and 
open to scrutiny. 

 Advice will be put clearly and simply and confirmed in writing on request.  It 
will explain what is required,  why it is required and over what timescale.

 We will provide information and advice in a number of different formats and in 
plain language.  



6

Proportionality:

 We will ensure that any enforcement action is proportionate to the risks.
 We will take into account the circumstances of the case and the attitude of the 

licence holder.
 We will work with customers to help them meet their legal obligations without 

unnecessary expense.
 Legal requirements will be clearly distinguished from best practice advice.
 We will ensure that any enforcement, or remedial action taken is reasonable 

and in proportion to the circumstances. 

Consistency: 

 We will carry out our duties in a fair, equitable and consistent manner.
 To achieve this we will consult and liaise with other local authorities and 

agencies, such as the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Licensing Officers’ Group, 
and particularly, where there is a shared enforcement role, with other 
enforcing authorities. 

Helpfulness:

 We will actively work to advise and assist customers in compliance with the 
law, such as, through the production of information leaflets and through the 
publication of guidance on our website. 

 Licensing staff will be courteous and efficient, identify themselves by name 
and carry an identity card. Contact details will be provided for customers 
wishing further help or advice.

4.       ENFORCEMENT CRITERIA

4.1 All investigations into alleged breaches of legislation will follow best professional 
practice and the requirements relevant legislation and guidance.

4.2 In determining the nature and extent of the enforcement action the Council will 
take into account the following factors;

 The risk or harm to the public and others
 Whether the matter is in the public interest
 The seriousness of the offence
 The consequence of non-compliance
 The explanation of the offender
 Confidence in the individual that they will not offend in the future
 Whether there has been previous contravention of the legislation and/or 

licence conditions 
 The willingness of the alleged offender to prevent a recurrence of the problem
 The likely effectiveness of the various enforcement options
 The availability and reliability of witnesses
 The sufficiency of the evidence
 Statutory defences



7

 Whether a Primary Authority arrangement exists or where there is shared 
enforcement responsibility with another enforcement agency.

4.3 Before formal enforcement action is taken, where appropriate, the authorised 
officer will discuss the circumstances of the case with the Licensing Team Leader or 
Environmental Health Service Manager. Where immediate action is taken, reasons 
for such action will be given at the time and confirmed in writing.

4.4 Where there are rights of appeal against formal action, notification of the appeal 
mechanism will be clearly set out in writing at the time the action is taken. 

4.5 In making decisions about enforcement action, the Council is not acting on behalf 
of an individual complainant, but is exercising a wider responsibility to secure a safe 
environment for the public and any others who may be affected. 

5.      ENFORCEMENT OPTIONS

5.1 Enforcement action may only be initiated by officers who are authorised to do so 
in accordance with the Licensing Team’s authorisation procedure. The enforcement 
options detailed below constitute incremental steps reflecting the seriousness of the 
non compliance.

  LEVEL 1

 Verbal advice and/or guidance
 Notice or letter identifying non compliances with timescales
 Non investigation/advisory letters

(Including any of the above which contains information to promote or 
assist compliance.)

LEVEL 2

 Written warning advising of the consequences of continued 
non compliance or of a repetition of reported non compliance.

LEVEL 3

 The attachment of additional conditions
 Refusal to renew licence/permit/consent



8

 Suspension and/or revocation of licence/permit/consent

LEVEL 4

 Formal Caution
 A Hearing before the Licensing Sub-Committee

( A process whereby the offender admits the offence and the Formal 
Caution may be presented to a court as evidence of a previous 
admission of guilt)

LEVEL 5

 Prosecution

5. 2 The five levels of enforcement action are not necessarily sequential, and 
although best practice recommends that prosecution is considered as a last resort, 
each case will be considered on its own merits by the Licensing Team Leader.

6.      INFORMAL ACTION

6.1 The Licensing Team uses a variety of informal actions to secure compliance with 
legislation including offering advice, verbal warnings/requests for action, the use of 
letters and the issue of licensing inspection reports, including those generated 
immediately following an inspection.

6.2 It is appropriate to use informal action in the following circumstances:

 the act or omission is not serious enough to warrant formal action
 from the individual’s/business’ past history it can be reasonably expected 

that informal action will achieve compliance
 confidence in the individual’s/business’ management involved is high
 the consequences of non-compliance will not pose a significant risk to 

public health.

6.3 Even where some of the above criteria are not met, there may be circumstances 
in which informal action will be more effective than a formal approach.

7.      FORMAL CAUTIONS

7.1 The Home Office Circular 30/2005, ‘Cautioning of Adult Offenders’, states that 
the purpose of the formal caution is:

 to deal quickly and simply with less serious offenders
 to divert them from unnecessary appearance in the criminal courts and



9

 to reduce the likelihood of re-offending.

7.2 To safeguard the suspected offender’s interests, the following conditions should 
be fulfilled before a caution is administered:

 There must be sufficient evidence of the suspect’s guilt.
 The suspect must have made a clear and reliable admission of the offence 

(either verbally or in writing). 
 It is in the public interest to use a Simple Caution as the appropriate 

means of disposal. 
 The suspect must be 18 years or over. 

7.3 If all of the above requirements are met, the officer must consider whether the 
seriousness of the offence makes it appropriate for disposal by a Simple Caution. 

7.4 If there is insufficient evidence to consider taking a prosecution, then by 
implication the conditions are not satisfied for the use of a formal caution.  It is also 
inappropriate to use a formal caution where the suspected offender does not make a 
clear and reliable admission of the offence. There is no legal obligation for any 
person to accept the offer of a formal caution and therefore no pressure will be 
applied to the person to accept a caution.

7.5 Formal cautions shall be used in accordance with the Home Office Circular 
30/2005 and relevant guidance. The Environmental Health Service Manager is 
designated the “cautioning officer” to issue formal cautions.

7.6 Where a person declines the offer of a formal caution, it will be necessary to 
consider taking alternative enforcement action.  While this will probably mean taking 
a prosecution, this is not inevitable. For example, it may be felt that a written warning 
would be appropriate.

7.7 Where a formal caution has been given other relevant regulatory bodies will be 
advised such as the Police, the Gambling Commission or the Primary Authority.  

8.      PENALTY POINTS (Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles Licence 
Holders)

8.1 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Operators, Drivers and Vehicles are 
principally regulated under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976, the Town Police Clauses Act 1847, licence conditions and the Council’s 
Byelaws.

8.2 Should an operator, driver or proprietor of a vehicle commit an offence or breach 
byelaws or conditions of a licence, they will be asked to attend the offices for an 
interview.  Once investigations are completed, any of the actions detailed in Section 
5 of this policy may be taken.

8.3 The primary objective of the penalty points scheme is to improve the levels of 
compliance and help improve the standards, safety and protection of the travelling 
public. It is designed to work in conjunction with other enforcement options.  It 
provides a formalised stepped enforcement plan.  The purpose of the scheme is to 



10

record misdemeanours and to act as a record of licence holder’s behaviour and 
conduct so as to ascertain whether they are a fit and proper person.  It does not 
prejudice the Council’s ability to take other forms of actions.

8.4 Penalty points will remain unspent for 36 months.  This period is on a roll forward 
basis, so as to allow any older points to be considered as ‘spent’ and therefore 
excluded from the running total recorded against any individual licence holder. 

9.     PROSECUTION

9.1 The decision to refer a case for prosecution is a very significant one.  Prosecution 
will, in general, be restricted to those persons who blatantly disregard the law, refuse 
to achieve even the basic minimum legal requirements, often following previous 
contact with the authority and who put the public at serious risk.

9.2 The circumstances which are likely to warrant prosecution may be characterised 
by one or more of the following:

a) The seriousness of the alleged offence;

 The risk or harm to public health
 Identifiable victims
 Failure to comply with a statutory notice served for a significant breach of 

legislation
 Disregard of public health for financial reward.

b) The previous history of the party concerned:

 Offences following a history of similar offences
 Failure to respond positively to past warnings
 Failure to comply with statutory notices.

c) The likelihood of the defendant being able to establish a due diligence 
    defence

d) The ability of any important witnesses and their willingness to co-operate

e) The willingness of the party to prevent a recurrence of the problem

f) The probable public benefit of a prosecution and the importance of the case 
e.g. whether it might establish a legal precedent

g) Whether other action, such as issuing a formal caution in accordance with 
Home Office Circular 30/2005 would be more appropriate.

h) Any explanation offered by the business or the suspected offender. This will 
always be encouraged.

9.3 There are however, various factors which will point away from a prosecution 
including:



11

 The likelihood of a nominal penalty
 The offence was committed as a result of a genuine mistake or 

misunderstanding. This must be balanced against the seriousness of the 
offence.

 Whether any other action, such as issuing a formal caution in accordance 
with Home Office Circular 30/2005 would be more appropriate.

9.4 When circumstances have been identified which may warrant a prosecution, all 
relevant evidence and information shall be considered, to enable a consistent, fair 
and objective decision to be made.

9.5 Before a prosecution proceeds, the officer responsible for referring the case to 
the Head of Legal Services must be satisfied that there is relevant, admissible, 
substantial and reliable evidence that an identifiable person or company has 
committed an offence.  There must be a realistic prospect of conviction.  With 
insufficient evidence to prosecute, other types of formal action, such as formal 
cautioning, are not alternatives.

9.6 In addition to being satisfied that there is sufficient evidence to provide a realistic 
prospect of conviction, there must be a positive decision, based on relevant criteria, 
that it is in the public’s interest to prosecute.  The Head of Legal Services, in taking a 
decision to prosecute, will review the decision of the referring officer.  

9.7 Once a decision has been taken that a case is suitable for prosecution, the 
matter will be referred to the Head of Legal Services.

9.8 Where a prosecution is initiated other relevant bodies may be advised. These 
bodies may include Primary Authorities and/or the Police.  

9.9 In all cases where there may be a shared enforcement responsibility, such as 
Hampshire Constabulary, the Gambling Commission, Trading Standards Department 
or the Hampshire Fire and Rescue, then the other party will always be consulted on 
the best co-ordinated approach. 

9.10 This policy document is provided for the guidance of officers, licence holders, 
businesses, Councillors and members of the public.  It cannot affect the discretion of 
the Licensing Team Leader to recommend enforcement action in any case where it is 
deemed in the public interest to take proceedings in a court of law.

10.      OTHER ACTIONS

10.1 Regardless of any course of action arising in consequence of a non compliance, 
other actions including the following may also be taken:

 Issue of Fixed Penalty Notices
 Issue of Penalty Points 
 Referral to the Licensing Sub-Committee
 Referral to any other agency for action 
 Referral to any other appropriate Local Authority
 Referral to Police
 Referral to the Vehicle and Operator Services Agency (VOSA)



12

 Referral to appropriate department within the Council 
 Driving assessment
 Driving lessons and reassessment

11.      DEALING WITH INTELLIGENCE

11.1 Where a report of unlicensed activities or a breach of licence conditions is 
received, it will be investigated by a member of the Licensing Team.  

12.     EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

12.1 We will ensure, through the application of this policy, that all licence holders, 
businesses and members of the public will receive fair and equitable treatment 
irrespective of their race, ethnicity, gender, sexuality or any disability.

13.     REVIEW

13.1 This policy will be reviewed at least every three years and amended as 
necessary in the light of legislative changes and other prevailing circumstances.

13.2 We will keep our regulatory activities and interventions under review with a view 
to considering the extent to which it would be appropriate to remove or reduce the 
regulatory burdens they impose.

13.3 The operation of this policy will be monitored and any variations addressed. 

13.4 If you have any comment on this Licensing Enforcement Policy please email: 
licensing@easthants.gov.uk . Your comments will be taken into account during future 
policy reviews.

13.6 A formal complaints procedure operates within the Council for use in the event 
of a substantive complaint being made against the Licensing team or any of its 
officers. If you wish to make a complaint about the service you have received please 
contact the Licensing Team Leader in the first instance.

14.     CONTACT POINTS

Licensing 
East Hampshire District Council
Penns Place
Petersfield
Hampshire
GU31 4EX

Office Hours: Monday – Friday: 09.00 – 17.00

Telephone: 01730 234379 / 234389

Fax: 01730 234330

Email: licensing@easthants.gov.uk

mailto:licensing@telford.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@telford.gov.uk


East Hampshire and Havant Borough Council Version 3 May 2014 

1 

Integrated Impact Assessment 
In exploring options for service design and alternative methods, managers should consider the need to ensure that the Council is meeting its 
legal duties in respect of community safety, equalities, health & safety, safeguarding children & vulnerable adults. In addition they should 
consider council commitments toward sustainability, economic impact and consideration of the impact of changes on people living in both rural 
and urban areas. 
Lead Assessor Date Who else 

involved 
What is the 
Service/function/project/strategy? 

Why/how is it changing? 

Mike Smith 13 May 
2015 

Policy will be 
subject of public 
consultation 
 

EHDC – Licensing 
Update of Taxi Licensing Policy 

See explanation summarising Policy in Section 3 of 
report. 

 
Service Delivery Yes  No Explanation 
1. Is this service provided elsewhere locally? Yes  All Local Authorities carry out Licensing of Taxis 
2. Could this service be provided by the 
voluntary/community sector? 

 No There are no such providers. 

 
Can this service be changed in ways that it: 
Issue +ve -ve Neutral Explanation 
                             Customer, Community & Equality 
3. Protects or improves the Health & Wellbeing of any section of the 
community (EHDC Bob Coleman, HBC Nicki Conyard) 

X   The purpose of Licensing is to protect 
public safety.   
A relevant, up to date Policy will 
contribute to this aim. 

4. Promotes community safety including reducing crime & anti social 
behaviour 1  (EHDC Karen Dawes, HBC Tim Pointer) 

X   

5. Ensures it does not disadvantage any individuals on the basis of age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage/civil partnership, 
maternity/pregnancy, race, religion/belief, sex or sexual orientation 2 (Caren 
Ransom) 

X   The criteria listed in the Policy for a 
person to be granted a licence apply to 
all groups, regardless of characteristic. 
The Policy will go through a process of 
public consultation. 
Licensing of wheelchair accessible 
vehicles encouraged through 
relaxation of age limits. 
The Team encourages the trade to 
engage with each other and the 

6. Advances equality of opportunity between those who share the 
characteristics in Q5 and those who do not (Caren Ransom) 

X   

7. Promotes a vibrant, inclusive and cohesive community by: enabling and 
encouraging everyone to engage with the council and its partners and take 
part in community/voluntary activities (Caren Ransom) 

X   



East Hampshire and Havant Borough Council Version 3 May 2014 

2 

Issue +ve -ve Neutral Explanation 
Council. 

8. Retains or improves access to use, local shops, services, facilities and 
leisure/recreation services (Jeff Crate) 

X   Access to local taxi services will be 
improved through making sensible 
changes to vehicle specification 
allowing an increased choice of vehicle 
to be licensed. 

9. Is designed to reduce the inequalities of outcome which result from socio-
economic disadvantage (Caren Ransom) 

X   The criteria listed in the Policy for a 
person to be granted a licence apply to 
all groups. 
Policy commits to ensuring licensing 
fees and taxi fares are reviewed 
annually. 

10. Does not disadvantage current or former armed service personnel, their 
families or veterans3 (Peter Silvester) 

X   The criteria listed in the Policy for a 
person to be granted a licence apply to 
all groups.  Former Armed Service 
Personnel are exempt from 
requirement to obtain good conduct 
certificate if they have lived outside the 
UK. 

11. Contributes positively to perceptions of Place, eg, affordable and 
resource/energy efficient housing needs that meets everyone’s needs (Lead 
IIA Assessor/any appropriate Officer depending on what is being assessed) 

X   There are standards and conditions 
which licence holders are expected to 
adhere to. 

                                             Economic 
12. Provides or supports local employment opportunities (Senior Economic 
Development Officer - SEDO) 

X   Policy commits to ensuring licensing 
fees and taxi fares are reviewed 
annually. 
The criteria listed in the Policy for a 
person to be granted a licence apply to 
all groups, 

13. Provides opportunities for, supports and develops local Third Sector 
(voluntary and not-for-profit) organisations and/or SME’s? (SEDO) 

X   

14. creates, improves or supports local education, training or work experience 
opportunities (SEDO) 

X   Promotes education/training as Policy 
details a requirement for all drivers to 
complete a Qualification as part of 
their Licence. 



East Hampshire and Havant Borough Council Version 3 May 2014 

3 

Issue +ve -ve Neutral Explanation 
                                        Health & Safety 
15. Impacts on the Health & Safety of employees, contractors, service users 
or the public (Stuart Pinkney) 

X   The purpose of Licensing is to protect 
public safety.   
A relevant, up to date Policy will 
contribute to this aim. 

16. Improves the H&S of employees, contractors, service users or the public 
(Stuart Pinkney) 

X   

                                   Rural Communities 
17. Supports or enhances access to transport, public services, educational, 
leisure or recreational opportunities in rural areas (EHDC only Sarah Hobbs) 

X   Access to local taxi services will be 
improved through making sensible 
changes to vehicle specification 
allowing an increased choice of vehicle 
to be licensed. 
Reviewing the table of fares will 
improve public access to cost effective 
transport. 

18. Sustains, develops or improves rural infrastructure including: buildings, 
transport (including foot and cycle paths), energy and electronic infrastructure 
(EHDC only Sarah Hobbs) 

X   

19. Protects or develops land-based and other rural businesses and sustain or 
create jobs in rural areas (EHDC only Dan Grindey)  

X   

20. Supports or develops the capacity and capabilities of rural organisations in 
all sectors to deliver services, work in partnership and support community 
activities (EHDC only Bob Coleman) 

  X N/A 

          Safeguarding Children & Vulnerable Adults 
21. Promotes and complies with the safeguarding policy & procedures (EHDC 
Bob Coleman, HBC Nicki Conyard) 

X   Clear criteria relating to grant of a 
licence to individuals. 

22. Prevents or reduces the risk of children or adults becoming victims of 
domestic abuse 4 (EHDC Bob Coleman, HBC Nicki Conyard) 

X   Recommendations of Casey report 
relating to convictions for sexual 
offences included in Policy. 

                                   Sustainability  
23. Impacts on the carbon footprint of the Borough/District, i.e. energy and  
transport use (Pennie Brown) 

X   Maximum age limit of 5 years for new 
vehicles and regular mechanical 
inspections should ensure fleet 
maintained efficiently. 

24. Supports the ability to adapt to a changing climate or be resilient to its 
longer term impacts i.e. hotter summers, extreme weather events, flooding 
and sea level rise (Pennie Brown) 

  X N/A 

25. Promotes sustainable use of resources i.e. using resources such as water, 
land and minerals efficiently, minimising pollution, promoting re-use and 

X   Maximum age limit of 5 years for new 
vehicles and regular mechanical 



East Hampshire and Havant Borough Council Version 3 May 2014 

4 

Issue +ve -ve Neutral Explanation 
recycling, and encouraging sustainable consumption or production (Pennie 
Brown) 

inspections should ensure fleet 
maintained efficiently. 

26. Conserves the natural environment by protecting and enhancing: 
biodiversity, species, natural habitats and green space, and landscapes 
(Pennie Brown) 

  X N/A 

                                    Assessment Conclusion                                                                               Explanation 
27. Can any negative impacts be mitigated? No negative impacts identified. 
28. Can any positive impacts be enhanced? There is scope to encourage use of efficient cars such as 

electric/hybrid vehicles which will be subject of future 
investigation with the Council’s Sustainability Lead. 

29. Do you need to seek more information to conclude? No. 
30. Do you need to carry out a further assessment, such as a health & Safety 
or Customer & Equality Impact Assessment? If so please state why. 

No. 

31. Assessment Summary (this can be copied onto your committee report 
template). Ensure decision makers are fully aware of the potential impact of 
their decisions. 

An updated Taxi and Private Hire Policy would Positively 
Contribute to the Council’s Strategy. 
 
 
Head of Service sign off :Andrew Pritchard  Date:13 May 2015 

 
                                                
1 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act requires all local authorities, including joint authorities and police authorities, to consider crime and disorder 
reduction while exercising all their duties 
 
 
2 These are the “protected characteristics” identified in the Equality Act 2010 which came into force on 1st October 2010 and replaced earlier equality 
legislation. The council has legal duties to: 

 Eliminate discrimination 
 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 
 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 

N.B. Services may lawfully treat individuals or groups differently if that is necessary to meet their different needs.  
 
3 Those associated with the armed forces may experience isolation. Some families have a parent away from the area for long periods of time. Can single 
person discounts apply? How are you communicating the benefits of what you are assessing to people associated with the armed forces? Did you know we 
have a web page that could help? 



East Hampshire and Havant Borough Council Version 3 May 2014 

5 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
 
4 A vulnerable adult is a person who is aged 18 years or older and: 

 is living in residential accommodation, such as a care home or a residential special school; 
 is living in sheltered housing; 
 is receiving domiciliary care in his or her own home; 
 is receiving any form of health care; 
 is detained in a prison, remand centre, young offender institution, secure training centre or attendance centre or under the powers of the Immigration 

and Asylum Act 1999; 
 is in contact with probation services; 
 is receiving a welfare service of a description to be prescribed in regulations; 
 is receiving a service or participating in an activity which is specifically targeted at people with age-related needs, disabilities or prescribed physical or 

mental health conditions. (age-related needs includes needs associated with frailty, illness, disability or mental capacity)  
 is an expectant or nursing mothers living in residential care 
 is receiving direct payments from a local authority/HSS body in lieu of social care services; 
 requires assistance in the conduct of his or her own affairs 
 

Whilst the majority of adult domestic abuse victims are women, men are also subject to domestic abuse in both same sex and different sex relationships.  
The government defines domestic violence as: ‘any incident of threatening behaviour, violence or abuse (psychological, physical, sexual, financial or 
emotional) between adults, aged 18 and over, who are, or have been, intimate partners or family members, regardless of gender and sexuality.’  
 
Family members are defined as: mother, father, son, daughter, brother, sister or grandparents. These may be direct relatives, in-laws or step-family. 
 
This definition is also used by the Association of Chief Police Officers and the Crown Prosecution Service. Where the victim of the abuse is less than 18 years 
of age the abuse will normally be treated as child abuse. 
 
 





NONEXEMPT 
            

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

LICENSING COMMITTEE 14 August 2015

CHARGES FOR TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING FOR 2015/2016

 Report of the Licensing Team Leader

FOR DECISION

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 To consider a amendment to the Charges for Taxi and Private Hire Licensing for 
the financial year 2015/2016 as a result of the introduction of the Deregulation 
Act 2015.  

2.0 Recommendation 

That:

2.1 (a) That the charges as shown at Appendix I are approved for consultation;
(b) That the necessary advertisement be placed; and
(c)  In the event that no representations are received in response to the 
consultation, the new charges be implemented commencing 1st October 2015.  

3.0 Summary 

3.1 Licensing charges for Taxi and Private Hire were last reviewed and agreed by 
Licensing Committee on 13 January 2015 for the financial year 2015/16. 

3.2 The Deregulation Act 2015 enacted on 1st April 2015 introduced a standard 
length of 3 years for Driver’s licences and 5 years for Operator’s Licences.

3.3 Fees have been calculated in line with legislation in order to fully recover The 
Council’s costs through offering these longer duration licences.  The proposed 
fees are shown as Appendix I.

3.4 Any change to the charges for Vehicle and Operators licences has by law to be 
advertised in the local newspaper and any comments have to be considered at a 
subsequent meeting of the Licensing Committee.    



4.0 Implications 

4.1 Resources: 

In arriving at the proposed charges, analysis of taxi/private hire licensing 
income/expenditure by the Council’s Financial Team was undertaken.  

A copy of the figures produced as a result of the analysis is shown at Appendix II.

Under current service volumes and fees, the Council can expect to receive an 
annual income of £34528 from issuing driver’s licences, and £5200 from issuing 
Private Hire Operator’s licences.

Using the current service volumes and proposed fees for the longer licence 
durations, the Council can expect to receive an annual income over three years 
of £75140 from issuing driver’s licences, and £14080 over five years from issuing 
Private Hire Operator’s licences.

Over the length of the licence, this equals an annual income of £25047 from 
driver’s licences and £2816 from operators licences, a reduction in annual 
income of £11865.

4.2 Legal

The setting of fees for hackney carriage, private hire vehicle and operator 
licences is governed by section 70 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976.  The council may charge such amounts as are sufficient in 
the aggregate to cover the reasonable cost of carrying out vehicle inspections, 
the costs of providing hackney carriage stands and any reasonable 
administrative or other costs in connection with these activities and with the 
control and supervision of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles.

The Act sets a maximum fee of £25 for the grant of vehicle and operator licences 
or any such sum as the council may determine.  If the council wishes to charge 
more than £25 or vary its existing charges, the council must publish details in at 
least one local newspaper specifying a period of not less than 28 days within 
which objections to the variation can be made.  A copy of the notice must be 
available for inspection by the public during the 28 day period and if no 
objections are received, or any objections made are withdrawn, the variation 
shall come into operation on the date of the expiration of the period specified in 
the notice.  If objections are made and not withdrawn, the council must consider 
those objections and set a further date, not later than two months after the first 
specified date, on which the variation shall come into force with or without 
modification as decided by the council, after consideration of the objections.

4.3 Strategy:

The introduction of a longer licence duration will reduce the burden on the 
licensed trade through having to renew licences annually and contribute to the 
Council’s Strategic aims of public service excellence and economic growth.  The 
proposed fees brings East Hampshire District Council’s fees into alignment with 
relevant costs which we can recover through fees.  Re-assessing costs and fees 



is necessary to meet our strategic objective of achieving financial sustainability 
and public service excellence.

4.4 Risks: 

The fees proposed can be justified against a transparent assessment of our 
costs for administering this service.                                            

4.5 Communications:

The trade will be informed of the proposed fees via an advertisement which will 
be placed and should any comments be received, these will be referred back to 
the Licensing Committee on 25 September 2015.  

4.6 For the Community:

The community will be provided with a safe form of public transport funded 
through the fees proposed in this report.

5.0 Consultation

Public Consultation to follow agreement of the proposals in this report.

6.0 Appendices: 

Appendix I – Proposed charges
Appendix II – Financial analysis figures

Background Papers: 
None

Agreed and signed off by:

Legal Services: Nick Leach, 5 August 2015
Finance: Jane Eaton/Simon Little, 3 August 2015
Relevant Executive Head: Andrew Pritchard, 5 August
 
Contact Officer: Mike Smith
Job Title: Licensing Team Leader
Telephone: Tel: 01730 234094
E-Mail: mike.smith@easthants.gov.uk





East Hampshire District Council
Proposed Additional Taxi and Private Hire Licensing Fees for 2015/16

Licence Type Cost

New 3 Year Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver 
Licence

£229.00

New 3 Year Restricted Private Hire Driver Licence £229.00

Renewal of 3 Year Combined Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Driver Licence

£165.00

Renewal of 3 Year Restricted Private Hire Driver Licence £165.00

5 Year Private Hire Operators Licence £352.00





3 Year Driver Licence for New Applicant

Staffing Costs
Process Officer Time Cost
Initial enquiry and 
explanation of 
licensing process LSO 15 mins  £      3.01 
Applicant Interview LO 30 Mins  £      7.96 
Cash desk 
Transaction CSO 10 Mins  £      2.01 
Application 
Administration LSO 30 Mins  £      6.03 
Return Of 
Documents LSO 30 Mins  £      6.03 
Produce and Issue 
licence with ID 
Badge LSO 20 Mins  £      4.02 
Produce and Issue 
licence with ID 
Badge LTL 15 Mins £       5.52 
Administration 
during 3 year 
period

LSO
LO
LTL

30 Mins
30 Mins
10 Mins

£       6.03
£       7.96
£       3.68

Generation of 
Licence Renewal 
Letters LSO 15 Mins  £      3.01 
Return of 
documents to 
reception  cash 
desk transaction CSO 20 Mins  £      4.01 
Renewal 
Administration

LSO
LO
LTL

30 Mins
10 Mins
5 Mins

£       6.03 
£       2.65
£       1.84

Cost of Materials
Printer costs  £      2.08
Printer Ribbon  £      0.80 
Materials  £      15.40 

Other Costs
3 year Routine Checks and Complaints £       20.76
Medical Checks £       31.38
Advertising £       1.65
Service Support Overhead based on hourly absorption £       85.26
Postage £       2.16

TOTAL
£       229.28



3 Year Renewal for Existing Licence Holder

Staffing Costs
Process Officer Time Cost
Generation of 
Licence Renewal 
Letters LSO 15 Mins  £      3.01 
Return of 
documents to 
reception  cash 
desk transaction CSO 20 Mins  £      4.01 
Application 
Administration LSO 30 Mins  £      6.03 
Produce and Issue 
licence with ID 
Badge LSO 20 Mins  £      4.02 
Produce and Issue 
licence with ID 
Badge LTL 15 Mins £       5.52 
Administration 
during 3 year 
period

LSO
LO
LTL

30 Mins
30 Mins
10 Mins

£       6.03
£       7.96
£       3.68

Renewal 
Administration

LSO
LO
LTL

30 Mins
10 Mins
5 Mins

£       6.03 
£       2.65
£       1.84

Cost of Materials
Printer costs  £      2.08
Printer Ribbon  £      0.80 
Materials  £      15.40 

Other Costs
3 year Routine Checks and Complaints £       20.76
Medical Checks £       11.38
Advertising £       1.65
Service Support Overhead based on hourly absorption £       60.92
Postage £       1.08

TOTAL £       164.85



5 Year Operators Licence

Staffing Costs
Process Officer Time Cost
Initial enquiry LSO 15 Mins £        3.01 
Reception and 
Cashdesk 
Transaction CSO 20 Mins £       4.02 

Application 
Administration

LSO
LO
LTL

30 Mins
10 Mins
10 Mins

£       6.03
£       2.65
£       3.68 

Application 
Administration LO 10 Mins £       2.65 
5 year Control & 
Supervision LO 240 Mins £      63.68 
5 year Control & 
Supervision LSO 120 Mins £      24.12 
5 year Control & 
Supervision LTL 60 mins £      22.08 
Renewal
Administration LSO 30 Mins £       6.03 

Other Costs
5 year Routine Checks and Complaints £       34.60
Advertising £       2.75
Postage £       1.62
Service Support Overhead based on hourly absorption £       174.95

TOTAL £       351.87




	Agenda
	5 Taxi and Private Hire Licensing Policy
	Appendix I - Consultation responses 1
	Appendix I - Consultation responses 2
	Appendix I - Consultation responses 3
	Appendix II - Minutes of Taxi Forum Meeting 17 June
	Appendix III - Summary of Consultation Responses
	Appendix IV - EHDC HC and PH Policy Statement August 2015 FINAL Version for Committee Approval
	Appendix V - Dual Drivers Conditions August 2015
	Appendix VI - Restricted PH Drivers Conditions August 2015
	Appendix VII - Hackney Carriage Conditions August 2015
	Appendix VIII - PHV Conditions August 2015
	Appendix IX - PH Operator Conditions August 2015
	Appendix X - Penalty Points Scheme August 2015
	Appendix XI - Licensing Enforcement Policy August 2015
	Appendix XII - Integrated Impact Assessment Taxi Policy August 2015

	6 Charges for Taxi and Private Hire Licensing for 2015/2016
	Appendix I - Proposed Variation to Fees
	Appendix II - Calculations


